MAXPRO[®] VMS R300 Viewer Edition

Operator's Guide



Issue 1

Revisions

Issue	Date	Description
1.0	February 24, 2012	New document

Table of Contents

ABOUT MAXPRO® VMS R300 VIEWER EDITION
INTRODUCING MAXPRO® VMS R300 VIEWER EDITION 5 SCOPE 5 INTENDED AUDIENCE 5 MAXPRO VMS ARCHITECTURE 6 MAXPRO VMS CLIENT WORKSTATION 6 MAXPRO VMS SERVER 6 TYPOGRAPHICAL CONVENTIONS 6
SYSTEM REQUIREMENTS AND LICENSING
SYSTEM REQUIREMENTS
LOG IN AND FAMILIARIZATION
LOGGING ON USING PROFILES
LOGGING ON TO MAXPRO VMS
Setting the Default Profile
Modifying a Profile
Deleting a Profile
Logging Off
CLOSING THE MAXPRO VMS USER INTERFACE
FAMILIARIZING WITH THE MAXPRO VMS USER INTERFACE
VIEWER TAB
CONFIGURATOR TAB
Search tab
Help tab
Setting Preferences
Settings for Video Rendering
Pausing the Video Rendering
Express PTZ Mode
Settings for Alarm Preview Pane
Setting the Alarm Threshold Value
Configuring the OSD Settings
Configuring the Timeline Settings
Configuring Diagnostic Settings
CONFIGURING THE CLIP EXPORT SETTINGS

DEFAULT SETTINGS
Setting Profiles
CONFIGURING DEVICES AND SETTING UP A SITE
SETTING UP A SITE USING CONFIGURATOR
Adding Sites
Adding Workstations
Adding Partitions
Adding Users
Adding Recorders
Adding Video Inputs
Adding Video Outputs
Adding Relays
Adding Alarm Inputs
Adding Sequences
Recorders
Adding a Recorder
DISCOVERING DEVICES
Associating Partitions to the Recorder
ASSOCIATING EVENTS AND EVENT ATTRIBUTES TO A RECORDER
Updating a Recorder
Deleting a Recorder
VIDEO INPUTS
Adding Video Inputs
Adding a Camera
ASSOCIATING EVENTS AND EVENT ATTRIBUTES TO A VIDEO INPUT
Associating Partitions to Video Inputs
Updating a Video Input
Deleting a Video Input
VIDEO OUTPUTS
Adding Video Outputs
Adding Monitors
DELETING A VIDEO OUTPUT DEVICE
UPDATING A VIDEO OUTPUT DEVICE
LOCKING THE DISPLAY ON THE MONITOR
Associating Partitions to Video Outputs
Associating Video Outputs to Event Groups
Associating Video Outputs to Joystick Controllers
Relays

Adding the relay
DELETING THE RELAY
UPDATING THE RELAY
Alarm Inputs
DELETING THE ALARM INPUT
UPDATING THE ALARM INPUT
USERS
Adding a User
DISCOVERING AND IMPORTING USERS
UPDATING A USER
DELETING A USER
Roles
SEQUENCES
CREATING A SEQUENCE
UPDATING A SEQUENCE
DELETING A SEQUENCE
PARTITIONS
Adding a Partition
DELETING A PARTITION
WORKSTATIONS
Adding a Workstation
DELETING A WORKSTATION
Site
Adding a Site
DELETING A SITE
MONITORING A SITE
SALVO LAYOUTS AND PANELS
Salvo View
CREATING A SALVO VIEW
DELETING A SALVO VIEW
LIVE VIDEO
VIEWING LIVE VIDEO
Playing a Sequence
VIDEO RECORDING AND VIEWING
VIEWING RECORDED VIDEO
TIMELINE
PLAYING RECORDED VIDEO USING THE TIMELINE
PLAYING RECORDED VIDEO USING MARK IN AND MARK OUT POINTS IN TIMELINE 104
VIDEO CONTROL

VIDEO CONTROL OPTIONS IN PANEL TOOLBARS
PANNING, TILTING, AND ZOOMING 110
IMAGES AND CLIPS
Saving Images
CREATING CLIPS
VIEWING IMAGES AND CLIPS
DELETING IMAGES AND CLIPS 116
Alarms
ACKNOWLEDGING ALARMS
CLEARING ACKNOWLEDGED ALARMS
SEARCHING FOR RECORDED VIDEO
INTELLISENSE SEARCH
Persistence
PERSISTENCE FOR CAMERAS
VIEWER WINDOW SIZE AND POSITION PERSISTENCE
Log on Persistence
PERSISTENCE FOR SORT OPTIONS
STATUS OF DEVICES
UTILITIES AND TOOLS
VERIFYING THE DIGITAL CERTIFICATE FOR CLIPS
MAXPRO VMS AGENT 128

ABOUT MAXPRO[®] VMS R300 VIEWER EDITION

INTRODUCING MAXPRO[®] VMS R300 VIEWER EDITION

MAXPRO® VMS R300 Viewer Edition is a scaled-down version of MAXPRO® VMS R300 Enterprise Edition software.

- One-stop solution The software is tailored for monitoring multiple Honeywell's DVRs from a single client.
- DVR Support The following four Honeywell DVRs are supported.
 - MAXPRO NVR
 - RapidEye
 - Fusion
 - HRXD
- **User Interface** The user interface is based on the Honeywell's flagship MAXPRO VMS R300 Enterprise software..
- **Open Architecture** The software is built using industry standard protocols and technologies.
- **Scalable** The software can be upgraded to the MAXPRO VMS R300 Enterprise Edition by purchasing the appropriate license.
- **Easy-to-use Configuration pages** The software provides flexible and easy touse configuration pages that simplifies the discovery of cameras connected to Honeywell recorders.

SCOPE

.....

This guide covers the basic video surveillance tasks that can be performed by an operator of MAXPRO VMS.

INTENDED AUDIENCE

This guide is intended for the operators of MAXPRO VMS.

MAXPRO VMS ARCHITECTURE

MAXPRO Viewer edition server and client can be installed on the same machine providing it meets the minimum hardware requirements. Additional clients can be connected to the server to a maximum of 5.

MAXPRO VMS CLIENT WORKSTATION

The user interface installed on a workstation acts as the client and enables you to monitor sites and configure the video devices such as cameras. Up to four digital monitors can be connected to each client workstation.

MAXPRO VMS Server

The server consists of the trinity framework and database of all the connected recorders, users and system data. Typically the client is also installed on the server to allow local management if desired.

The trinity framework for MAXPRO VMS is designed to provide a central platform for video products such as Rapid Eye, Fusion, and Enterprise recorders. A central platform gives you the capability to manage diverse video products through the same user interface. This brings in the advantage of a similar look and feel across video products. Trinity is a service oriented framework, which means that each video product can use certain services and components from MAXPRO VMS. The long term objective of developing the service oriented trinity framework is to support more technologies and other video products in the future.

TYPOGRAPHICAL CONVENTIONS

Font What it represents Example Swiss721 BT Words or characters that you must type. The Enter the password. word "enter" is used if you must type text and then press the Enter or Return key. Menu titles and other items you select Double-click Open from the File menu. Buttons you click to perform actions Click Exit to close the program. Trebuchet MS Heading Installation Cross-reference to external source Refer to the System Administrator Guide. Cross-reference within document See Installation.

This guide uses the conventions listed in the following table.

System requirements and Licensing

SYSTEM REQUIREMENTS

The following tables list the system requirements for MAXPRO VMS server and client computers. MAXPRO VMS server and client can be installed on the same computer provided it meets the minimum hardware requirements. Additional clients can be connected to the server to a maximum of 5.

.

MAXPRO VMS Viewer Minimum System Requirements		
Processor	Intel Core [®] 2 Duo 3.00 GHz / Dual Core 3.00 GHz/1333 MHz/4 MB L2	
Operating System	Microsoft [®] Windows XP Professional SP2 (32-bit only) or Microsoft [®] Windows 7 Professional (32-bit and 64-bit) Microsoft [®] Windows Server 2003 (32 bit) or Microsoft [®] Windows Server 2008 R2	
RAM	4 GB	
Secondary Storage	DVD-RW drive	
Hard Disk	Minimum 100 GB Partition drive	
Graphics Adapter	Display adapter - Direct X 9 compatible 256 MB per monitor or greater	
Network connection	1Gbit/sec or greater	
Video Resolution	1280x1024 pixels; 65K colors non- interlaced	
Database	Microsoft SQL Express 2008 is automatically installed while installing MAXPRO VMS Server	
Keyboard / Mouse	12 function-key keyboard and mouse	

Note: The server computer must have a PCI Express (PCI-E) expansion card to connect the serial port card.

MAXPRO VMS Viewer Recommended System Requirements		
Processor	Intel Core® 2 Extreme 3.00 GHz / Quad Core 3.00 GHz/1333 MHz/12 MB	
Operating System	Microsoft [®] Windows XP Professional SP2 (32-bit only) or Microsoft [®] Windows 7 Professional (32-bit and 64-bit) Microsoft [®] Windows Server 2003 (32 bit) or Microsoft [®] Windows Server 2008 R2	
RAM	4 GB	
Secondary Storage	DVD-RW drive	
Hard Disk	Minimum 100 GB Partition drive	
Graphics Adapter	Display adapter - Direct X 9 compatible 256 MB per monitor or greater	
Network connection	1Gbit/sec or greater	
Video Resolution	1280x1024 pixels; 65K colors non- interlaced	
Database	Microsoft SQL Express 2008 is automatically installed while installing MAXPRO VMS Server	
Keyboard / Mouse	12 function-key keyboard and mouse	

VIEWING THE VERSION AND LICENSE INFORMATION OF MAXPRO VMS

You can view the version and license information of MAXPRO VMS from the user menu.

1. Click the User menu. The user menu options appear.

. . . .

- 2. Click About. The version and license information of MAXPRO VMS displays.
- 3. Click License. The License Management Console dialog box appears.

B b × ■ Constant	Privilege	1	
General Features General Features	AddAlarmInput AddAlarmInput AddAlarmInput AddAlareotder AddRecorder AddRecorder AddRecorder AddRecorder AddRecorder AddSequence AddSequence AddSte AddSte AddSte AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecoluput AddVecolu		

Figure 1-1 License Management Console

Note: Selecting the **Privileges** option on the left pane displays the list of default privileges that are included in the MAXPRO VMS R300 Viewer Edition software. To upgrade to a full functional MAXPRO VMS having all the privileges, you must purchase a license for MAXPRO VMS R300 Enterprise Edition.

GENERATING THE LICENSE FOR MAXPRO VMS

The MAXPRO VMS R300 Viewer Edition setup comes with a limited set of features (as it is a scaled down version of MAXPRO VMS R300 Enterprise Edition) and helps you to add up to 160 cameras across all Digital Video Recorders (DVR) and 5 clients. MAXPRO VMS R300 Viewer Edition currently supports four DVRs. To utilize all the features of MAXPRO VMS R300 Enterprise Edition, you need to purchase the appropriate license. You can purchase license for any number of cameras, and clients.

BEFORE YOU BEGIN

Procure the voucher number from the MAXPRO VMS sales support team. To contact the MAXPRO VMS sales support team, USA customers go to the URL: http://www.honeywellvideo.com/contact/sales/index.html and European customers send an email to <u>HISHelp.Europe@honeywell.com</u>.

To purchase and install MAXPRO VMS license

- Click the About option in the user menu. The About MAXPRO Video Management System dialog box appears.
- 2. Click License. The License Management Console dialog box appears.



Figure 1-2 License Management Console

- 3. In the License drop-down list, select Generate Host ID File. The Browse For Folder dialog box appears.
- 4. Select the path where you want to generate Host ID file, and then click OK.

Note: Host ID is a unique ID generated for the computer.

 Send the Host ID file with the voucher number as the subject videolicenserequests@honeywell.com through email. For example, if the voucher number is 4356-6754-0000-78556-985436 type, VOUCHID: 4356-6754-0000-78556-985436 in the subject.

- 6. Honeywell reverts with a unique license certificate to your email. Copy the file and paste it in a folder.
- Perform step 1 and step 2 and then select Install License in the License dropdown list. The New License Configuration Wizard dialog box appears.
- 8. Click Next. The Locate Your License File dialog box appears.
- 9. Click the **Browse** button to locate your license certificate, and then click **Next**. The **License Comparison** dialog box appears.
- 10. The License Comparison dialog box displays the details of the existing license and the newly procured license. Compare the columns Existing License and Selected License corresponding to General Features and Devices, and then click Next. The Device Configuration Changes dialog box appears.
 - **Note:** Any discrepancy in the license must be notified to Honeywell Sales Support. For example, the maximum supported cameras row under Selected License column displays the number of cameras for which the license is purchased. If the number of cameras is less or more than number of cameras for which the license was purchased, contact the Honeywell Sales Support immediately.
- **11.** Check for the accuracy of details, and then click **Next**. The **Confirm New License** dialog box appears.
- 12. Click Finish. The New License Configuration Wizard dialog box appears.
- 13. Click Yes.

TERMINATING THE LICENSE

You can terminate the license when you do not want to use MAXPRO VMS or when you want to use the existing license on a different computer.

To terminate license

- Click the About option in the user menu. The About MAXPRO Video Management System dialog box appears.
- 2. Click License. The License Management Console dialog box appears.
- In the License drop-down list, select Terminate License. A message asking for confirmation appears.
- 4. Click Yes. The Browse for Folder dialog box appears.
- 5. Select the path to save license terminate certificate file.

To use the existing license in a new computer

- 1. Generate the Host ID file for the new computer.
- Send the Host ID file, license terminate certificate file, and the voucher number to <u>videolicenserequests@honeywell.com</u>.
- 3. Honeywell reverts back with a unique license certificate. Copy the file and paste it in a folder.
- 4. Perform *step 9* through *step 13* of the **To purchase and install MAXPRO VMS license** procedure.

Note: You can upgrade the number of clients and cameras by purchasing the upgrade license. Upgrade license helps you to add more clients and cameras along with the existing clients and cameras. You can also purchase supersede license if you do not want to continue with the existing clients but add new clients to the MAXPRO VMS unit.

To use the existing license in a new computer

- 1. Generate the Host ID file for the new computer.
- 2. Send the Host ID file, license terminate certificate file, and the voucher number to videolicenserequests@honeywell.com.
- 3. Honeywell reverts back with a unique license certificate. Copy the file and paste it in a folder.
- 4. Perform *step 9* through *step 13* of the **To purchase and install MAXPRO VMS license** procedure.
 - **Note:** You can upgrade the number of clients and cameras by purchasing the upgrade license. Upgrade license helps you to add more clients and cameras along with the existing clients and cameras. You can also purchase supersede license if you do not want to continue with the existing clients but add new clients to the MAXPRO VMS.

LOGGING ON USING PROFILES

The MAXPRO VMS server addresses are saved in profiles. You need to select the profile before logging on. You can set a profile as the default profile. When a profile is set as default, you do not need to select the profile each time you log on to MAXPRO VMS. You can also modify and delete profiles.

LOGGING ON TO MAXPRO VMS

1. Double-click in the desktop. The **Log On** dialog box appears.

or

Click Start -> Programs -> Honeywell -> MAXPRO VMS. The Log On dialog box appears.



Figure 2-1 MAXPRO VMS Log on

- 2. Click the Language option, and then select the required language.
- 3. In the User Name box, type the user name. The default user name is "Admin".
- 4. In the **Password** box, type the password. The default password is "trinity".

2

- **Note:** Select the **Windows Logged-In** User check box for logging on using the Windows user name and password. If the Windows Logged-In User check box is cleared, the MAXPRO VMS user name and password is used for authentication.
- In the **Profiles** box, select the profile corresponding to the MAXPRO VMS server you want to connect to and press **ENTER** or click the 2 icon.

SAVING A SERVER ADDRESS IN A PROFILE

- 1. In the client workstation, double-click the **Log On** dialog box.
- 2. Click Server Settings. The Server Settings dialog box appears.

Default Profile		Add	Remove
Deraut Profile		Auu	Keinove
Configuration			
Profile Name	Default Profile		
erver IP/Name	WIN2K8-64BIT2 Port	20007	Edit Ports
Controller IP/Name	WIN2K8-64BIT2 Port	26026	Set Default
		_	

Figure 2-2 Server Settings

- 3. Click Add.
- 4. In the **Profile Name** box, type a name to identify the profile.
- In the Server IP/Name box, type the numerical IP address or the network name of the MAXPRO VMS server.
- 6. Click Save.
- 7. Click **OK**. The server address is saved in the profile.

Note: You can click Set Default to set the profile as default profile.

SETTING THE DEFAULT PROFILE

To set the default profile

- 1. Select the profile you want to set as default before logging on to MAXPRO VMS.
- 2. In the user menu, click **Profiles** and select **Set Default Profile**. The profile is set as the default profile. The default profile appears selected in the **Profile** box in the **Log On** dialog box.

MODIFYING A PROFILE

You can modify the profile name and the server address saved in the profile. To modify a profile

- 1. In the client workstation, double-click the *Log On* dialog box.
- 2. Click Server Settings. The Server Settings dialog box appears.
- 3. In the **Choose Profile** box, select the profile you want to modify. The profile details appear under **Configuration** in the **Server Settings** dialog box.
- 4. In the Profile Name box, you can change the profile name.
- 5. In the Server IP/Name box, you can change the server address.
- 6. Click Save.
- 7. Click OK.

DELETING A PROFILE

To delete a profile

- In the client workstation, double-click the icon in the desktop to display the Log On dialog box.
- 2. Click Server Settings. The Server Settings dialog box appears.
- 3. In the Choose Profile box, select the profile you want to delete.
- 4. Click Remove.
- 5. Click OK. The profile is deleted.

LOGGING OFF

You can log off from MAXPRO VMS from the user menu. The name of the currently logged in user is displayed as the user menu on the top right of each screen.

To log off from MAXPRO VMS

- 1. Click the User menu. The user menu options appear.
- Click Log Off. The log on dialog box is displayed after logging off from MAXPRO VMS.

CLOSING THE MAXPRO VMS USER INTERFACE

You can close the MAXPRO VMS user interface from the user menu. The name of the currently logged in user is displayed as the user menu on the top right of each screen.

To close the MAXPRO VMS user interface

- 1. Click the **User menu**. The user menu options appear.
- 2. Click Exit. A dialog box appears prompting you to confirm the action.
- 3. Click Yes.

FAMILIARIZING WITH THE MAXPRO VMS USER INTERFACE

The user interface of MAXPRO VMS is easy-to-use because of its intuitive icons and user friendly features. You can monitor the sites and configure the devices in the video surveillance network through the MAXPRO VMS user interface. The user interface consists of tabs, tree-structures, status bar, floating windows, and icons. On opening the user interface, you see five tabs, namely the **Viewer, Configurator**, **Search, Report** and **Help**. Based on the tab you select, windows, tree structures, and other settings relevant to the tab appear on the screen.

A status bar is displayed in the lower part of the user interface. The status bar indicates the connection status with the MAXPRO VMS server and controller, the MAXPRO VMS server name, status of clip creation, role of the user, number of unacknowledged alarms, number of messages sent to you, the CPU usage, and time. In addition, you can turn on the Virtual Keyboard feature to select salvo layouts, panels, cameras, and monitors.

VIEWER TAB

2

The following figure illustrates the Viewer tab.



Figure 2-3 Viewer tab

The following components are displayed on the screen.

Component	Description
Devices window	A floating window that displays recorders, switchers, and cameras in a tree structure. You can select one or more devices from the Devices window to view video in the Salvo Layout.
	A drop-down list on the top of the Devices window lists the partitions. You can select a partition in the drop-down list to view the devices from the particular partition. Selecting the All Partitions option in the drop down box displays the devices from all the partitions in the tree view.
	The status of the devices also appear in the window. See . You can right-click on the devices to display context menu.
	Intellisense search
	The Intellisense search option makes the search of cameras simpler and easier. When a part of the camera name is types in the text box, the Intellisense search displays the list of cameras that are connected to various recorders in the Devices window. For example, if you are searching for Camera 2 connected to particular recorder, then type Ca in the text box, the list of camera names that contain 'ca' are displayed.
	 Intellisense search also supports wild characters while searching. For example, ca* — camera names that begins with the 'ca' are displayed.
	 *ca — camera names that ends with the 'ca' are displayed. *ca* — camera names that contain the 'ca' are displayed. ! ca — cameras that does not have 'ca' in their
	name are displayed.
	Select the required filter string and click on the filter button. You can toggle between the Filter On and Off mode using the option \square or right-click \square , and select between Filter ON and Filter OFF. The hot key to activate intellisense search is F4 .

LOG IN AND FAMILIARIZATION

2

Familiarizing with the MAXPRO VMS user interface

Component	Description
Devices window continued	 The context menu options in the Devices window include: Show Live - to view live video. Show Device ID - to display the device ID. The ID is specified while adding the device and is useful to perform operations using virtual keyboard. Hide Device ID - to hide the display of device ID. Remove - to remove the device from the list. Refresh - to refresh the camera status. Refresh from Device - to refresh the camera status from device. Group By - to group the cameras based on the site or device. Sort By - to sort the list of devices by name or callup number. By default, names and callup numbers are sorted in ascending order. Add to MyDevices - to add devices to MyDevices. Collapse All - to collapse the device tree.
Alarm Window	Click to display a floating window that lists the alarms. You can acknowledge and clear the alarms from this window.
Image/Clip Window	 Click to display a floating window that lists the images and clips in a tree structure. You can select the images and clips to view. You can right-click on the images folder or the images to display context menu. The context menu options include: Refresh - to refresh the images/clips in the respective folder. Image View - to view the images. Show In Folder - to view the folder in which the images are stored. Delete - to delete an image.

LOG IN AND FAMILIARIZATION .

Familiarizing with the MAXPRO VMS user interface '

Component	Description	
My Devices Window	A floating window that lists in a tree structure, the devices such as cameras, monitors, and sequences.	
	You can drag and drop devices from the Devices, Sequences and Monitors window to MyDevices window You can group these devices according to your preferences in separate folders.	
	 To create a folder 1. Right-click on MyDevices or SharedDevices in the My Devices window and select Add New Folder. A new folder appears with a default name. 	
	2. Type a name for the folder and press ENTER.	
	This feature is useful to group video sources which are frequently selected. The video sources can be selected easily when needed instead of looking in the Device window which generally consists of many video sources.	
	The status of the devices also appear in the window.	
	The devices are displayed only when the user who included the devices in My Devices window logs on.	
	You can copy a device from MyDevices to Shared Devices and from Shared Devices to MyDevices using the drag and drop option.	
	Devices grouped under shared devices are displayed on all client workstations irrespective of the logged in user. To group devices under SharedDevices , drag and drop the devices from MyDevices . Similarly you can drag and drop to copy devices from SharedDevices to MyDevices . This ensures that you retain the device even if an operator deletes the device in SharedDevices .	

LOG IN AND FAMILIARIZATION

Familiarizing with the MAXPRO VMS user interface

Component	Description
My Devices window continued	 You can right-click on the devices to display a context menu. The context menu options include: Show Live - to view live video. Snapshot View - to view the snapshots from the recorded video. You can view the snapshots from 1 second, 5 seconds, 15 seconds, 1 minute, 5 minutes, 15 minutes, 30 minutes, 45 minutes, 1 hour, 3 hours, 6 hours, 12 hours, and 1 day. Show Device ID - to display the device ID. The ID is specified while adding the device and is useful while performing PTZ or using virtual keyboard. Hide Device ID - to hide the display of device ID. Refresh - to refresh the camera status. Refresh from Device - to refresh the camera status from device. Sort By Name - to sort the list of devices by name. By default, names are sorted in ascending order.
Sequences window	 Click to display a floating window that lists the sequences. You can play the sequence using the play sequence action. You can right-click on the devices to display a context menu. The context menu options include: Play Sequence - to play any sequence. Show Sequences ID - to display the device ID. The ID is specified while adding the device and is useful to perform operations using virtual keyboard. Add to My Devices - to add sequences to My Devices list. Sort By Name - to sort the list of sequences by name. By default, names are sorted in ascending order.

LOG IN AND FAMILIARIZATION .

Familiarizing with the MAXPRO VMS user interface '

Component	Description
Views window	A floating window that lists the salvo views. View window consists of My Salvo Views and Shared Salvo Views . Salvo views corresponding to the logged on user are listed under My Salvo Views in Views window. You can copy a salvo view from My Salvo Views to Shared Salvo Views using the drag and drop option or right-click and select Add to Shared Salvo Views . Similarly, you can copy a salvo view from Shared Salvo Views to My Salvo Views using the drag and drop option. Devices grouped under Shared Salvo Views are displayed on all client workstations irrespective of the logged in user.
	To add a salvo view to Shared Salvo Views , right- click on a salvo view, and then click Add to Shared Salvo Views . You can copy a salvo view from Shared Salvo Views to My Salvo Views by dragging and dropping a salvo view.
	You can right-click on the devices to display a context menu. The context menu options include:Show - to view the salvo view.
	 Rename - to rename a salvo view. Remove - to remove a salvo view. Save - to save a salvo view.
	 Add to Shared Salvo Views - to add a salvo view to the Shared Salvo views.
	• Show Device ID - to display the device ID. The ID is specified while adding the device and is useful to perform operations using virtual keyboard.
	 Hide View ID - to hide the display of device ID. Refresh - to refresh the salvo views in the list. Sort By Name - to sort the list of salvo views by name. By default, names are sorted in ascending order.
Salvo Layout	An arrangement of panels in which video is displayed.
Timeline window	A window that enables you to view recorded video from a specific date and time. It also consists of other features such as loop playback of video using mark in and mark out. You can also create clips from video recordings. You can select between the scrub mode or full timeline mode using the scrub

CONFIGURATOR TAB

The following figure illustrates the **Configurator** tab.



Figure 2-4 Configurator tab

The settings in the **Configurator** tab enable you to add and configure the video devices and setup the MAXPRO VMS system.

Components	Description
Device View Window (Navigation Area)	Displays branches in a tree structure namely, Devices , User Management , and Groups . Each branch can be expanded to display more items. For example, the Devices branch when expanded displays items such as Recorders and Cameras. Selecting an item displays the relevant settings in the display area. For example selecting the Recorders displays the settings to add, update, and delete recorders.
Display Area	Displays the settings based on your selection in the Device View window.

SEARCH TAB

The following figure illustrates the **Search** tab.



Figure 2-5 Search tab

You can search for recorded video and events from various recorders from the **Search** tab.

HELP TAB

Select the Help tab to display the online help for working with MAXPRO VMS

SETTING PREFERENCES

The Preferences option in the user menu enables you to configure the general settings and the On Screen Display (OSD) settings. In general settings, you can configure the frame rate for panels that are not selected in the salvo layout, the video rendering settings, the video to be displayed for alarms, and the alarm threshold settings. The OSD settings can be configured to change the font properties like type, color, and size for the text that appears over the video displayed in a panel.

You can also select the default values for the general and OSD settings using the **Preferences** option.

SETTINGS FOR VIDEO RENDERING

There are two types of rendering modes namely, **Default** and **No Video Display**. The Default rendering is the recommended mode which enables the user to view live video from multiple cameras at optimum quality. Selecting No Video Display will not display any video. You can also set the frame rate for panels that are not selected in the salvo layout. The frame rate for the panels that are not selected can be set to improve the video signal transmission over lower bandwidth networks.

To select the video rendering option

 Click the Preferences option in the user menu. The Preferences dialog box is displayed. By default, the General Settings tab is selected.

Preferences Clip Export Setti	ngs				r 1	X
	tion Level Setting	s			ings Launch Pad	1
Preview	Pane	Panel1 Live	Panel2 On Alarm	Panel3 Pre Alarm	Panel4 Post Alarm	
Pause V	ideo Rendering		 Viewer ✓ Configurator Search 	☑ Report ☑ Help		
🗖 Expr	ess PTZ Mode		🗖 Enable Cam	era Parking		
	evel Settings — verity Threshold	50			Reset	
Syste	em Defaults		ОК	Cancel	Apply	



2. Click the Rendering Settings tab.



Figure 2-7 Rendering Settings

- 3. In the **Renderer Option** drop-down list, select one of the options for video rendering.
- 4. Select the **Mange CPU Load** (Throttle Frame Rate) check box if you want to throttle the frame rate if the CPU usage reaches 90 per cent.
- 5. Select the **Show Time Stamp For Live** check box if you want the camera name and time to be displayed on the live video.
- 6. Select the **Deinterlace Selected Panel** check box if you want to deinterlace the selected panel.
- 7. Select the check box beside Set FPS Limit For Unselected Panel.
- 8. In the **FPS Limit** box, select a frame rate. The default frame rate is 5 fps and is the recommended setting for unselected panels.
- 9. Click Apply.
- 10. Click OK to close the dialog box.

PAUSING THE VIDEO RENDERING

You can pause the video rendering to momentarily stop the rendering of video when a tab that does not display video is selected. For example, when the **Report** tab is selected, the video rendering can be paused to improve the application performance. The rendering of video starts again when you select a different tab in the user interface.

To select the tab which pauses video rendering

- 1. Click the **Preferences** option in the user menu. The **Preferences** dialog box is displayed. By default, the **General Settings** tab is selected.
- 2. In the **Pause Video Rendering** box, select the check box next to the tab names that you want to select.

Clip Export Settings General Settings	Rendering Settings Diagnostic Settings Launch Pad
Workstation Level Settings Panel1 Preview Pane Live V	Panel2 Panel3 Panel4 On Alarm V Pre Alarm V Post Alarm V
Pause Video Rendering	☐ Viewer
Express PTZ Mode	Enable Camera Parking
Server Level Settings Alarm Severity Threshold 50	Reset
System Defaults	OK Cancel Apply

Figure 2-8 Pausing the Video Rendering

- 3. Click Apply.
- 4. Click **OK** to close the dialog box.
- To enable the display of controller text on digital monitor
- 5. Click the OSD Settings tab.

2

Preferences Clip Export Setting General Settings	s TimeLine Settings	OSD Setting	⊅\$ Rendering Se	ttings Diagnostic S	Settings Laun	× nch Pad
Workstation L	.evel Settings					-
Color	ontrol Text on Digita	l Monitor	Preview			
Systen	a Dofaulte		Edi	t Cancel	Reset	Apply

Figure 2-9 Enabling Control text on Digital Monitors

6. Select the **Enable Control Text on Digital Monitor** check box to display controller text on digital monitor.

EXPRESS PTZ MODE

This feature helps you to perform pan, tilt and zoom operations by marking an area of interest on the live video using the rubber band technique. You can perform only analog PTZ operations using this technique.

To enable the express PTZ mode

1. Click the **Preferences** option in the user menu. The **Preferences** dialog box appears. By default, the **General Settings** tab is selected.

7 Preferences	
Clip Export Settings General Settings TimeLine Settings OSD Settings	Rendering Settings Diagnostic Settings Launch Pad
Workstation Level Settings Panel1 Preview Pane	Panel2 Panel3 Panel4 On Alarm V Pre Alarm V Post Alarm V
Pause Video Rendering	Viewer
Express PTZ Mode	Enable Camera Parking
Server Level Settings Alarm Sevenity Threshold 50	Reset
System Defaults	DK Cancel Apply

Figure 2-10 Enabling the Express PTZ Mode

2. Select the **Express PTZ** Mode check box to enable the Express PTZ Mode feature

SETTINGS FOR ALARM PREVIEW PANE

When the video related to an alarm is played from the **Alarm** window, the salvo layout changes to a four panel layout. You can define the video display for each

panel namely, Pre Alarm, Post Alarm, Live, and On Alarm. The following table defines these options.

Option	Description
Pre Alarm	The video before the occurrence of the event that triggered the alarm is played.
Post Alarm	The video after the occurrence of the event that triggered the alarm is played.
Live	Live video is played.
On Alarm	The video is played from the occurrence of the event that triggered the alarm.

To define the video display for each preview panel

1. Click the **Preferences** option in the user menu. The **Preferences** dialog box is displayed. By default, the **General Settings** tab is selected.

Workstation Level Settin				
Preview Pane	Panel1 Live	Panel2 On Alarm 💌	Panel3 Pre Alarm 💌	Panel4 Post Alarm 💌
Pause Video Rendering		 Viewer ✓ Configurator Search 	✓ Report ✓ Help	
Express PTZ Mode		🔲 Enable Cam	era Parking	
Server Level Settings – Alarm Severity Threshold	50			Reset

Figure 2-11 Settings for the Alarm Preview Pane

- In the Preview Pane box, select the video option for each panel. When you select Pre Alarm and Post Alarm, a dialog box appears. Select the time in seconds for which you want to view video related to pre alarm and post alarm in the dialog box and click OK.
- 3. Click Apply.
- 4. Click **OK** to close the dialog box.

SETTING THE ALARM THRESHOLD VALUE

When configuring the event settings for a recorder, camera, and switcher, you can specify a value known as the Severity Level for each event. When the event occurs, the Severity Level value is compared with the value in the Alarm Severity Threshold box in the preferences dialog box. The alarm is triggered only when the Severity Level value is greater than the Alarm Severity Threshold value.

For example, the alarm is triggered if the Severity Level for an event is 50 and the Alarm Severity Threshold value is 40. Use this feature to limit what alarms go to which client.

To set the alarm severity threshold value

1. Click the **Preferences** option in the user menu. The **Preferences** dialog box is displayed. By default, the **General Settings** tab is selected.

- 2. In the Alarm Severity Threshold box, type a value.
- 3. Click Apply.

2

4. Click **OK** to close the dialog box.

CONFIGURING THE OSD SETTINGS

You can configure the OSD settings to change the properties such as type, color, and size of the text that appears over the video displayed in a panel.

To set the font properties

- Click the Preferences option in the user menu. The Preferences dialog box is displayed.
- 2. Click the OSD Settings tab.

Preferences Clip Export Settings						×
General Settings 1	imeLine Settings	OSD Setting	Rendering S	ettings Diagnosti	c Settings La	aunch Pad
-Workstation Le	vel Settings					
Color	trol Text on Digita	l Monitor	Preview			
System	Defaults		Ed	lit Cancel	Reset	Apply

Figure 2-12 OSD Settings

- 3. Click Edit and select the font and color properties in the dialog box.
- 4. Click **OK** to close the font properties dialog box.
- 5. Click **Apply** in the preferences dialog box.
- 6. Click **OK** to close the preferences dialog box.

CONFIGURING THE TIMELINE SETTINGS

To configure the timeline settings

- Click the Preferences option in the user menu. The Preferences dialog box is displayed.
- 2. Click the Timeline Settings tab.

al Settings T	imeLine Settir	ngs OSD Settings	Rendering Settings	Diagnostic S	ettings Launch Pad
Timeline Jun	np Control Co	nfiguration			
Interval 1	5	sec 💌	Interval 4	1	hr 💌
Interval 2	1	min 💌	Interval 5	6	hr 💌
Interval 3	15	min 💌	Interval 6	1	Day 💌
Incident Mar	agement Mod	le Settings			
Pre Overlap	ped Time	10 Seconds 💌	Post Overlapp	ed Time	10 Seconds 💌
Note :	This settings	s is applicable only to	o this WorkStation		Reset

Figure 2-13 Timeline Settings

- 3. Under Timeline Jump Control Configuration, set the time for the intervals.
- 4. Under Incident Management Mode Settings, choose the following times for clip creation.
 - From the **PreOverlapped Time** drop down list, select a time that appends to the start time of clip creation for a camera.
 - From the **Post Overlapped Time** drop down list, select a time that appends to the end time of the clip creation for a camera.

Note: This time allows camera recorded time to automatically have an overlap when marking in and marking out.

- 5. Click Apply in the Preferences dialog box.
- 6. Click OK to close the Preferences dialog box.

CONFIGURING DIAGNOSTIC SETTINGS

To configure the diagnostic settings

- Click the Preferences option in the user menu. The Preferences dialog box is displayed.
- 2. Click the Diagnostic Settings tab.



Figure 2-14 Diagnostic Settings

- 3. Under Change log level settings, select the required log.
- 4. Click **Apply** in the **Preferences** dialog box.
- 5. Click **OK** to close the **Preferences** dialog box.

CONFIGURING THE CLIP EXPORT SETTINGS

You can configure the Clip Export Settings to change the default naming convention for the clips that are created from the recorded video.

To configure the clip export settings

 Click the **Preferences** option in the user menu The name of the currently logged in user is displayed as the user menu on the top right of each screen.. The **Preferences** dialog box appears. 2

2. Click the Clip Export Settings tab.

lip Export Folder Fo		
Month	MMM 🔽	
Date	ddd 🗾	
Year	99999	
	•	

Figure 2-15 Clip Export Settings

- 3. Select the **Default Format** check box to apply the default naming convention for the clips.
- 4. To change the default naming convention:
 - Select the desired formats for Month, Date, and Year.
 - Use the to arrange the **Month**, **Date**, and **Year** in the order of your choice.
- 5. Click Apply and then OK to save the data

DEFAULT SETTINGS

- 1. Click **Reset** to apply default settings while setting preferences.
- 2. Click **System Defaults** to apply the system default settings while setting preferences.

SETTING PROFILES

After logging in to the MAXPRO VMS user interface, you can adjust the floating windows to your desired position in the MAXPRO VMS user interface using the "Custom Profile" option. The profile settings that you have made persist when you switch between the different tabs in the user interface and while logging on and logging off the MAXPRO VMS user interface.

To set a custom profile

1. Choose the Profile > Custom Profile option in the user menu

Honeywell MAXPRO** VMS				
Viewer Configurator Search Heb				admin 🤐 👻
All Partitions			■ 回 (Refresh display service
Bevices RapidEye 2 Camera10 Second 1			Default Profile Custom Profile Save Existing Layout	Profile Preferences About
Camera1-162 Camera12 Camera13 Camera14 Camera15				Exit
Find Type here to filter				
Wp Devices 0 W Moreces - Devices				
Wy Devices Di Image/Clip				
Shared Salvo Views				
🔁 Views 🛃 Sequences				-+ -+ -+ -+ -+ -+ Jan-1970 00:00:00
(WINAX8-64EIT2] Glp Export Administrator Cla Sport Administrator				

Figure 2-16 Custom Profile

- 2. Adjust the floating windows to your desired position in the user interface.
- 3. Choose Profile>Save Existing Layout to save the changes.

Note: At any point of time, you can reset the floating window to its default position by choosing the **Profile**>**Default Profile** option.



This page is intentionally left blank
CONFIGURING DEVICES AND SETTING UP A SITE

Caution: Configuring the devices and setting up a site is performed **ONLY** by the administrator user after the MAXPRO VMS R300 Viewer Edition software installation. The contents in this chapter just serve as a reference for the operators.

SETTING UP A SITE USING CONFIGURATOR

A site enables you to monitor the activities in an area. Setting up a site involves adding and configuring the hardware devices, defining the users, partitions, and event groups.

Setting up a site involves the following:

ADDING SITES

A default site is added when you install MAXPRO VMS. You can use the default site and associate the hardware devices to it. You can also create new sites. See *Site* for more information.

ADDING WORKSTATIONS

Workstations are client computers in which the MAXPRO VMS user interface is installed. The users can perform actions such as monitoring a site, generating reports, searching for video recording, and configuring (add, update, and delete) devices from these workstations. See *Workstations* for more information.

ADDING PARTITIONS

A partition is a logical grouping of recorders, cameras, switchers, and monitors in a site. A default partition is added when you install MAXPRO VMS. You can associate the default partition to the site or create new partitions. See *Partitions* for more information.

Note: Partitions are used to limit user access to devices and cameras.

Adding Users

A default administrator user with the administrator privileges is created when you install MAXPRO VMS. The privileges for a user are defined in roles. You can define roles according to your requirements and assign them to users. The users are associated to a site. Only the users with access to the site can perform actions such as viewing video, acknowledging alarms, and others based on the user privileges. See *Users* and *Roles* for more information.

Adding Recorders

You can add Rapid Eye, MAXPRO NVR, HRXD and Fusion recorders. After adding recorders, you can associate them with partitions, and define the events. Only users of the partition that is associated with the recorder can configure the recorder settings. Only the events defined for the recorder can be configured to trigger event based alarms. For example, if you associate Recorder Disconnected event to a recorder, you can configure an alarm to be triggered when this event occurs. See *Recorders* for more information.

ADDING VIDEO INPUTS

You can add video inputs and associate them to recorders. See *Video Inputs* for more information.

ADDING VIDEO OUTPUTS

You can add video outputs like standard device, trunk, VCR, analog and digital monitors. See *Video Outputs* for more information.

ADDING RELAYS

You can add relays that can be connected to devices like recorders. Relays send signals that perform various actions. For example, you can set a relay to open the door automatically when a motion is detected in a particular region. See *Relays* for more information.

ADDING ALARM INPUTS

You can add alarm input to raise alarms through an external device in MAXPRO VMS. These alarm inputs can be associated to devices like recorder. See *Alarm Inputs* for more information.

ADDING SEQUENCES

You can define sequences to view live video streamed one after the other from cameras for a specified time interval. See <u>Sequences</u> for more information.

RECORDERS

. Recorders are devices used for streaming video and recording video from

surveillance cameras (analog cameras and IP based digital cameras).

RECORDERS AND PARTITIONS

A partition is a logical grouping of video devices. Partitions are associated to recorders. You can restrict a non-associated user of the partition from viewing or changing the settings of the recorder.

RECORDERS AND EVENTS

Events are predefined actions. Recorders have predefined events by default. An alarm is triggered whenever an event is generated. For example, when a camera is added to a recorder, an event 'CameraAdded' is generated. You can also associate event attributes to events.

ADDING A RECORDER

Before you begin

- Add Site. See Adding a Site for more information.
- Add Partition. See Adding a Partition for more information.

By default, a site, partition and event groups are available. You can associate the recorder to them or create new.

To add a recorder

- 1. Click the Configurator tab.
- 2. Expand Devices in the navigation area, and then click Recorders. The Recorders screen appears in the display area.
- 3. Click Add. The General Settings screen for the recorder appears.

Honeywell						MAXP	RO™ VMS					_ = ×
Viewer	Configurator	Se	earch		Help							admin 🚑 🗸
Device View		😑 DVR 3	3 Pto	[Sequences]) 🎠 so	an 1 👫	[Partitions]	飸 [Users]	Operator1	Monitor 2	🙀 Operator3) 🔤 DVR 4 🗙 🕶
Devices Recorders	6	General	Partitions	Events	1							•
Wideo Inputs	E	nter Record	er details									
Wideo Outputs		General Set	tings				Select Fo	atures (For Recorde	r and its Devices)			
 Alarm Inputs Issee Management 	*	Device Nam	ne -	E	usion 4		F En-	able Alarm and Contr	rol Operations			
Sers		-		Γ								
Pla Sequences		Description				4						
Workstations Dig Sites		Recorder T	уре		fusion	•						
		• Recorder V	ersion	•	IONE	•						
		Site			Default	-						
		Site		ŀ	Jerauk	<u> </u>						
		Device Se	attions									4 Þ
	Er	nter Fusion o										
		General Set	tings									
		Site Addre	:55	0		Ping	1					
					duplicate IP add	ress / device na	ne in database					
		Site Port		4000								
		* User ID										
		Password										
		🗂 Time Z	Cone	(GMT+05:30)	Chennai, Kolka	ta, Mumbai, New	Delhi	Y.				
		-	Discov	er Devices								
										Save	Cancel	Close
🔹 🌒 [WIN2K8-64BIT2] 🥤	🔒 Clip Export	Administra	tor				_	_			Alarm(s)	(34) 3:38:13 PM



- 4. In the **Device Name** box, type a name for the recorder.
- 5. In the **Description** box, type a description for the recorder.
- 6. In the **Recorder Type** drop-down list, select the recorder. Device settings for the selected recorder appear. The following table explains how to configure the device settings for the recorders.

Recorder Type	To configure the device settings
RapidEye	 In the Unit Address box, type the numeric IP address or the host name of RapidEye recorder. Click Ping to verify the connection. The field appears in green if the IP address or the host name is valid. Select the Check for duplicate IP address/ device name in the database check box to check the availability of the host name. In the Site Port box, the port number appears by default. In the System Password box, type the system password assigned to the recorder. In the Video Format drop-down list, select the required video format.
Fusion	 In the Site Address box, type the numeric IP address or the host name of the Fusion recorder. Click Ping to verify the connection. The field appears in green if the IP address or the host name is valid. Select the Check for duplicate IP address/ device name in the database check box to check the availability of the host name. In the Site Port box, the port number appears by default. In the User ID box, type the user name to access the recorder. In the Password box, type the assigned password for the user. Select the Time Zone check box to enable the global time zone box and select the required time zone.
HRXD	 In the Site Address box, type the numeric IP address or the host name of the HRXD recorder. Select the Check for duplicate IP address/ device name in the database check box to check the availability of the host name. In the Watch Port box, type the port number. In the Search Port box, type the port number. In the User ID box, type the user name to access the recorder. In the Password box, type the password to access the recorder. Select the Time Zone check box to enable the global time zone box, and then select the time zone from the drop-down list.

Recorder Type	To configure the device settings
MAXPRO NVR	 In the Unit Address box, type the numeric IP address or the host name of the MAXPRO NVR recorder. Click Ping to verify the connection. The field appears in green if the IP address or the host name is valid. Select the Check for duplicate IP address/ device name in the database check boxt o check the availability of the host name. In the Search Pot box, the port number appears by default. In the Controller Port box, the port number appears by default. In the StorageEngine Port box, the port number appears by default. In the User Name box, the user name appears by default. In the Password box, the password appears by default.

- 7. In the **Recorder Version** drop-down list, select the recorder version.
- 8. In the **Site** drop-down list, select the site to which the recorder is to be associated.
- 9. Associate Partition. See *Discovering Devices* for more information.
- **10.** Associate **Events and Event Attributes**. See *Associating Events and Event Attributes to a Recorder* for more information.
- 11. Click Save.
- 12. Click **Discover Devices** to discover various devices that are connected to MAXPRO VMS. See *Discovering Devices* for more information.

DISCOVERING DEVICES

To discover video input devices

- 1. Click the **Configurator** tab.
- 2. Expand **Devices** in the navigation area, and then click **Recorders**. The **Recorders** screen appears in the display area.
- 3. Double-click the check box corresponding to the recorder from which you want to discover devices. The recorder screen and the settings appear.
- 4. Click **Discover** Devices. The **Discovery Wizard** dialog box appears.





Figure 3-2 Discovery Wizard

- 5. Select the device or devices that you want to discover.
- Click View Advanced Settings to configure advanced settings and to specify the order of discovered devices.

Settings	Instruction
Start from last Callup number	Select this option if you want to add the device from the last callup number of the device type that has been selected.
Use free Callup number	Select this option to use the available callup number in the device type that has been selected.
Select starting Callup number	Type the starting callup number, and then choose an option from If Callup number already exists, what do you want to do? section. See <i>step</i> 7.
Override device name if it already exists	Select the option to override the device name that already exits.

- 7. In **If Callup number already exists, what do you want to do?** selection, select the required option. The available options are:
 - Add to End appends to the end of existing call up number.
 - **Override** overrides the callup number.
 - Don't Add does not add the callup number
- 8. In Camera Type Selection section, select Add Camera as Digital Camera or Add Camera as Hybrid Camera.
- 9. Click View Discover Log to view any log.

10. Click **Close** once connection established status appears in **Discovery Status** section.

ASSOCIATING PARTITIONS TO THE RECORDER

You can associate partitions to recorder. Associating a partition to a recorder restricts a non- associated user of the partition from viewing the recorder or changing the settings of the recorder.

Before you begin

• Add a Partition. See *Adding a Partition* for more information.

To associate partition to a recorder

- 1. Click the Configurator tab.
- 2. Expand **Devices** in the navigation area.
- 3. Click the Recorders branch. The Recorders screen appears in the display area.
- Double-click the recorder you want to associate. The General Settings screen appears.
- 5. Click the **Partitions** tab. The screen displays the associated partitions, if any.



Figure 3-3 Recorder Partitions

6. Click Associate. The Select Partitions dialog box appears.

3

Seleo	t Partitions.		×
	Partition Name		
	Partition 1		
		OK	Demost
		OK	Cancel

Figure 3-4 Select Partitions

- 7. Select the check box corresponding to the partition name you want to associate.
- 8. Click OK. The recorder is associated with the partition.

To disassociate partition from a recorder

 Select the check box corresponding to the partition name, and then click Remove.

Note: Partitions associated to a recorder cannot be removed unless they are removed from the devices that are connected to the same recorder.

Associating Events and Event Attributes to a Recorder

You can associate one or more events to a recorder. An alarm is triggered whenever any of the associated event occurs for the recorder. For certain events, you can also associate event attributes. For example, for an Encoder Disabled event, you can associate attributes such as Encoder Name, Encoder ID and so on. For every attribute that you associate, you can set a value based on which the event is triggered. In the above example, you can associate the attribute Encoder Name to the event and set its value as Encoder A. When this event is associated to the recorder, an alarm is raised when the event "Encoder Disabled" occurs for the Encoder Name "Encoder A".

Attributes are available only for certain events. These events can be associated to a recorder multiple times. The event attributes are listed in the details of the alarm in Alarm window. To view the event attributes of an alarm, right-click the alarm, and then click Show Details.

To associate events to a recorder

1. Click the **Events** tab. The screen displays the associated events if any.

CONFIGURING DEVICES AND SETTING UP A SITE .

oneywell			MAXPRO™ VMS				
Viewer Configur	rator Search	Help					admin 🚑
Device View	DWR 3 🕅 📷	[Sequences] 🕅 🐂 Sca	in 1 👫 [Partitions]	🍇 [Users] 🙀	Operator1 1 Monito	r 2 🧌 Operator3	/ DVR 4 X
Devices		Events					
Recorders	Associated Events						
💭 Video Outputs	Global ID	Event Description	Master Device Name	Key Attribute	Start Procedure	Finish Proc	
D> Relays		Recorder Disconnected	-,-		Start Hotebare	THISTITIC	
Alarm Inputs Ser Management	Enter Event ID	Recorder Connected	a.a				
Users	Enter Event ID	Recorder Settings Retrieved	10	1.1			Associate
iroups							
Sequences							
Partitions Workstations							Remove
Workstations							
<u> </u>							
	-			1		F	
	Event attributes setting	95				Ľ	
		95		No overits currently selected	1		
		35		No events currently selected	Save	L Cancel	Close

Figure 3-5 Recorder Events

2. Click Associate. The Select from List dialog box appears.

Sele	ct from Li	st	×
	Event ID	Event Description	Master Device Name
	559	Output Enabled	
	560	Output Disabled	
	564	Recorder Settings Retrieved	
			OK Cancel



- 3. Select the check box corresponding to the event you want to associate.
- 4. Click OK.

To disassociate events from a recorder

• Select the check box corresponding to the event, and then click Remove.

To disable an event

- 1. Select the check box corresponding to the event you want to disable.
- 2. Click the text under the **Disabled** column. A drop-down list is enabled.
- 3. Select True.

To assign severity level

- 1. Select the check box corresponding to the event you want assign severity level.
- 2. Click the value under the Severity Level column and edit the severity level.

Note: Severity level is set to trigger alarms when the threshold is met. For example, if the threshold is set 50 in the preferences tab, an alarm is triggered when threshold becomes 51.

To enter remarks

- 1. Select the check box corresponding to the event you want to enter remarks.
- 2. Click the text under the **Remarks** column and type the remarks.

To assign macros

- **1.** Select the check box corresponding to the event you want to assign macros.
- 2. Click the box under the **Start Procedure** column, and then type the required macro.
- 3. Click the box under the **End Procedure** column, and then type the required macro.

ASSOCIATING EVENT ATTRIBUTES

Before you begin

Associate events.

To associate event attributes

- 1. Select the check box corresponding to the event for which you want to associate event attributes. The **Event attributes** Settings appear in the lower pane.
- 2. Click Associate. The Select Available Event Attributes dialog box appears.
- 3. Select the check box corresponding to the event attributes that you want to associate.
- 4. Click OK.
- To disassociate event attributes from a recorder
- Select the check box corresponding to the event attribute, and then click Remove.

The following table describes the event name, of	event attributes, and their description.

Recorder	Event Name	Event Attributes	Attribute Description
Fusion	Input Enabled	CameraNumbe r	Numeric values from 1 to maximum channels supported in the recorder.
MAXPRO NVR	Recording Server Connected		
	Recording Server Disconnected		
	MAXPRO NVR Controller Connected		
	MAXPRO NVR Controller Disconnected		
HRDP	Recorder Connected		
	Recorder Disconnected		
	Output Enabled		
	Output Disabled		
RapidEye	Recorder Connected		
	Recorder Disconnected		

UPDATING A RECORDER

You can update a recorder to change the settings like the recorder name, site, site address, user ID, and password.

To update a recorder

- 1. Click the **Configurator** tab.
- 2. Expand **Devices** in the navigation area, and then click **Recorders**. The **Recorders** screen appears in the display area.
- 3. Select the check box corresponding to the recorder you want to update.
- 4. Click **Update**. The settings for the recorder appear. You can modify the settings.

DELETING A RECORDER

Before you begin

Remove the associations with the video inputs or delete all the video inputs that are associated with the recorder.

To delete a recorder

- 1. Click the **Configurator** tab.
- 2. Expand **Devices** in the navigation area, and then click **Recorders**. The **Recorders** screen appears in the display area.
- 3. Select the check box corresponding to the recorder you want to delete.
- 4. Click **Delete**. A message asking for confirmation appears on the top of the display area.
- 5. Click Yes.

VIDEO INPUTS

Video inputs are devices through which video is supplied into MAXPRO VMS. Video input devices can be logically grouped in MAXPRO VMS so that selecting and updating them is easier.

The following types of video input devices are supported.

Camera -fixed or PTZ.

VIDEO INPUTS AND PARTITIONS

A partition is a logical grouping of video devices. Partitions are associated to cameras. You can restrict a non-associated user of the partition from viewing or changing the settings of the camera.

VIDEO INPUTS AND EVENTS

Events are predefined actions. Video inputs have events set by default. For example, when a camera connection is lost, an event 'CameraDisconnected' is generated. You can also associate event attributes to events. An alarm is triggered whenever an event is generated.

ADDING VIDEO INPUTS

Before you begin

- Add Site. See Adding a Site.
- Add Partition. See Adding a Partition.
- Add Recorders. See Adding a Recorder.

By default, a site and partition are available. You can associate the camera to them or create new.

You can add a camera to view live video and record video. You can associate cameras to partitions and events.

To add a video input

- 1. Click the **Configurator** tab.
- Expand Devices in the navigation area, and then click Video Inputs. The Video Inputs screen appears in the display area, and displays the list of video inputs.

Honeywell				MAXPRO	M VMS					_ = ×
Viewer Configurator		Search	Help							admin 🚑
Device View	- Y - Y		X 📴 Cameral	VideoOutputs]	Monitor	1 (D. [Relays]	[Recorders]	📾 DVR 3	🗞 [Seq	uences]
Recorders	Add	/Update/Delete Video	Input(s) VideoInput Callup Number	VideoInput Name	1.0.10	-	1	Secondary Master		10.01.0
Wideo Inputs		Ref 17			Description	Туре	Primary Master			Switcher Inpr
Video Outputs	H		17	Camera1-162		Digital Fixed Camera	RapidEye 2		1	-,-
 Relays Alarm Inputs 			18	Camera2		Digital Fixed Camera	RapidEye 2		2	~~
S Avam Inputs			19	Camera3		Digital Fixed Camera	RapidEye 2		3	
S S Users			20	Camera4		Digital Fixed Camera	RapidEye 2	*,*	4	·
G Groups			21	Camera5		Digital Fixed Camera	RapidEye 2	-1-	5	
Pla Sequences			22	Camera6		Digital Fixed Camera	RapidEye 2		6	
Partitions			23	Camera7		Digital Fixed Camera	RapidEye 2	2.2	7	·.·
Wadatatiana			24	Camera8		Digital Fixed Camera	RapidEye 2	1.0	8	5-5
Stes			25	Camera9		Digital Fixed Camera	RapidEye 2	1.1	9	
ing sites			26	Camera10		Digital Fixed Camera	RapidEye 2	10	10	
		27	27	Camera11		Digital Fixed Camera	RapidEye 2	2.2	11	1.1
			28	Camera12		Digital Fixed Camera	RapidEye 2		12	
		29	29	Camera13		Digital Fixed Camera	RapidEye 2		13	
	10	30	30	Camera14		Digital Fixed Camera	RapidEye 2	-,-	14	
	ID	31	31	Camera15		Digital Fixed Camera	RapidEye 2	-,-	15	
		32	32	Camera16		Digital Fixed Camera	RapidEye 2		16	
	To	tal Record Count (16)				Add	Update		Delete
● ● [WIN2K8-64BIT2] 🔗 Clip Export	A.	dministrator						Ala	rm(s) (34)	3:51:10 P

Figure 3-7 Video Inputs

3. Click Add. The Camera screen appears by default.

Honeywell	MAXPRO** VMS	×
Viewer Configurator	Search Help admin 🦉	
	Search Help admin # Search Help admin # Search Help Cameral x Enerrain Partboos Events Enerrain portoxit Montor 2 Operatorit Enerrain portoxit Montor 2 Operatorit Directorit Enerain portoxit Montor 2 Operatorit Directorit Enerain portoxit Montor 2 Operatorit Directorit Enerain portoxit Filed Preview Preview Device Type Camera 1 Atemate Camera Stetrops Image: Camera Stetrops * Web Urput Name Enerain Atemate Camera New Image: Camera New * Calup Namber Image: Camera Stetrops Image: Camera Stetrops Image: Camera New * See Default Camera Mew Image: Camera New Image: Camera New	•
🔹 🌢 [WIN2K8-64BIT2] 🛛 🔒 Clip Export	Administrator 3:53:38	РМ

Figure 3-8 Camera Screen

4. From the **Device Type** drop-down list, select the required video input type. The currently supported video input device types are listed in the following table.

Video Input Device	Description
Camera	For details on configuring a camera, see <i>Adding a Camera</i> .

- 6. Associate Events and Event Attributes. See Associating Events and Event Attributes to a Video Input for more information.
- 7. Associate Analytics. See Select the check box corresponding to the partition name, and then click Remove. for more information.

Note: You can associate analytics only for cameras.

8. Click Save.

ADDING A CAMERA

Adding a camera involves defining the camera's set up and operation across switchers and recorders. You can update or configure the general settings of a camera to configure PTZ settings and connect a camera to a recorder or switcher.

To configure a camera

- 1. In the **Camera Type** area, click **PTZ Camera** if the configured camera is PTZ or click **Fixed Camera** if the camera type is fixed.
- 2. In the Video Input Details area, specify the following camera details.

Field	Description				
Video Input Name	Type a camera name. The camera name appears in the devices window making it easy to select.				
Description	Type a description for the camera.				
Callup Number	A unique number that identifies the camera. By default, the next available number is allocated. The operators can use the number to quickly view the live video from the camera using the virtual keyboard.				
Site	Location of the camera.				

3. In the Alternative Camera Settings area, specify the following details.

Settings	Description			
Alternate Camera	Type the number of the camera that has to be selected alternate camera option is selected from the context menu while playing or viewing live video. The range of valid camera numbers is 1 – 999999999. Zero (0) is the default value and indicates no alternate camera is defined.			
Alternate Camera View	Type the camera view number or preset number to select the preset view for the alternate camera. The valid camera views range is $1 - 99$, 0 is the default value which indicates no camera view is to be selected.			

3

- 4. In the **Connected To** area, select **Recorder**, if you want to connect the camera to a recorder (see *Associating Recorder to a Video Input Device* for more information).
- Select the Net Source box when you want to view a video from a camera connected to the MAXPRO VMS within a network configuration. Specify the following details.

Settings	Description
Net Source	Specify the network node and the camera number from which you want the video input. When the current video input is actually connected to another MAXPRO VMS within a network configuration, the Net Source field is used to specify the exact location and reference for the video input device.
Link	Select if you want to broadcast the status changes and actions performed on the current video input device on the network.
Advance Settings, and PTZ control Settings.	Configure the PTZ Control Settings. See Control Settings for more information.

To preview video when camera is associated to a recorder

- Select the **Preview** check box to view live video from the camera.
- Click the
 icon to save the current image in the clip video directory.
- Click the icon to open any saved image in the preview screen and position the camera accordingly.
- Click the 🔟 icon to delete the image in the preview screen.
- **Note:** Using the preview option, a user can take snapshots of the area to be monitored by the surveillance camera and save them. These snapshots can be used to identify the proper location where the camera needs to be installed so that the desired field of view is obtained. This can also be used to reposition the camera and identify changes in camera field of view.

Associating Recorder to a Video Input Device

Video input devices like cameras and digital input trunk can be associated with different recorders. Video clips are recorded and stored in recorders.

To associate a camera to a recorder

1. In the **Connected To** section, click **Recorder**. The **Recorder** drop-down list is enabled.

2. Select the recorder. The device settings for the recorder appear. Perform the instructions listed in the following table.

Recorder Type	Instructions			
RapidEye	 Control Settings Configure the Control Settings. See Control Settings for more information. 			
	Note: The Control Settings tab appears only when PTZ is selected as the Camera Type .			
Fusion	 Recorder Settings In the PTZ Sensitivity drop-down list, select a number for PTZ sensitivity. 			
	Note: The PTZ Sensitivity drop-down list is enabled only when you select the PTZ option in the General Settings (See <i>Adding a Camera</i> for more information) of the camera. The numbers represent the speed of the PTZ. The higher the number, the more the PTZ speed.			
	 Control Settings Configure the Control Settings. See Control Settings for more information. 			
	Note: The Control Settings tab appears only when PTZ is selected as Camera Type .			
HRXD	In the Control Settings tab, configure the Control Settings. See <i>Control Settings</i> for more information.			
	Note: The Control Settings tab appears only when PTZ is selected as Camera Type .			
MAXPRO NVR	 Recorder Settings In the PTZ Sensitivity drop-down list, select a number for PTZ sensitivity. 			

Note: For more details on the camera specifications for other recorders, refer to the manuals that are provided along with the cameras.

Associating Events and Event Attributes to a Video Input

You can associate one or more events to a video input. An alarm is triggered whenever any of the associated event occurs for the video input. For certain events, you can also associate event attributes. For example, for an Encoder Disabled event, you can associate attributes such as Encoder Name, Encoder ID and so on. For every attribute that you associate, you can set a value based on which the event is triggered. In the above example, you can associate the attribute Encoder Name to the event and set its value as Encoder A. When this event is associated to the video

input, an alarm is raised when the event "Encoder Disabled" occurs for the Encoder Name "Encoder A".

Attributes are available only for certain events. These events can be associated to a video input multiple times. The event attributes are listed in the details of the alarm in **Alarm** window. To view the event attributes of an alarm, right-click the alarm, and then click **Show Details**.

Before you begin

Add a Video Input

ASSOCIATING EVENTS

To associate events to video inputs

1. Click the **Events** tab. The screen displays the associated events, if any.

Honeywell					MA)	PRO™ VM9	;						_ = ×
Viewer Configurato	x 📄	Search		Help									admin 🎎 🗸
Device View	ha	[Sequences]	🖒 Scan 1	Pa	rtitions]	😫 [Users]	Cperator	1	Monitor 2	Sig Opera	tor3 🔤 DVR	4 🏾 🕬	Camera1 🗙 🔻
Bevices Recorders	Gen	eral Partitions	Events										-
Video Inputs	Asso	iciated Events											
Wideo Outputs		Global ID	Event Desc	ription	Master De	vice Name	Key Attribute		Start Proces	dure	Finish Proc		
Alarm Inputs		Enter Event ID Enter Event ID	Video lost Motion Dete	ected	HRDP 3 HRDP 3								
Ger Management Sers		CINCI LIGHT ID	THORNTOOL		THE T							A	ssociate
E 🚺 Groups													
Pla Sequences													emove
Workstations Sites													emove
j Sites													
	1	1	- N		1		-	1			Þ		
		Event attributes se	ttings										4 Þ
	ľ												
							No events current	tly selected					
								.,					
										Davis	T Owned		Class.
										Save	Cancel		Close
🔹 🔍 [WIN2K8-64BIT2] 🛛 🔮 Clip Expor	t Ac	iministrator									Ala	m(s) (34)	4:28:40 PM

Figure 3-9 Camera Events

2. Click Associate. The Select from List dialog box appears.

Sele	ct from Li	st	×
\Box	Event ID	Event Description	Master Device Name
	622	Camera Blind Detection Enabled	MAXPRO NVR 3
	623	Camera Blind Detection Disabled	MAXPRO NVR 3
	624	Camera Blur Detection Enabled	MAXPRO NVR 3
	625	Camera Blur Detection Disabled	MAXPRO NVR 3
	626	Video CSD Moved On	MAXPRO NVR 3
	627	Video CSD Moved Off	MAXPRO NVR 3
	628	Camera User Recording Started	MAXPRO NVR 3
	629	Camera User Recording Completed	MAXPRO NVR 3
	632	Camera Background Recording Disabled	MAXPRO NVR 3
	633	Camera Background Recording Enabled	MAXPRO NVR 3
	634	Camera Event Recording Started	MAXPRO NVR 3
	635	Camera Event Recording Completed	MAXPRO NVR 3
	638	Camera User recording error	MAXPRO NVR 3
	639	Camera NoMotion Detected	MAXPRO NVR 3
		ОК	Cancel

Figure 3-10 Select from List

- 3. Select the check box corresponding to the event you want to associate.
- 4. Click OK.

To disassociate events to video input

• Select the check box corresponding to the event, and then click Remove.

To disable an event

- 1. Select the check box corresponding to the event you want to disable.
- 2. Click the cell under the **Disabled** column. A drop-down list is enabled.
- 3. Select True.

To assign severity level

- 1. Select the check box corresponding to the event you want to assign the severity level.
- 2. Click the cell under the Severity Level column and edit the severity level.

Note: Severity level is set to trigger alarms when the threshold is met. For example, if the threshold is set 50 in the preferences tab, an alarm is triggered when threshold becomes 51.

To enter remarks

- 1. Select the check box corresponding to the event you want to enter remarks.
- 2. Click the cell under the **Remarks** column and type the remarks.

To assign macros

- 1. Select the check box corresponding to the event you want to assign macros.
- 2. Click the cell under the **Start Procedure** column, and then type the required macro.
- 3. Click the cell under the **End Procedure** column, and then type the required macro.

ASSOCIATING EVENT ATTRIBUTES

Before you begin

• Associate events.

To associate event attributes

- 1. Select the check box corresponding to the event for which you want to associate event attributes. The **Event attributes Settings** appear in the lower pane.
- 2. Click Associate. The Select Available Event Attributes dialog box appears.
- Select the check box corresponding to the event attributes that you want to associate.
- 4. Click OK.

To disassociate event attributes from a video input

• Select the check box corresponding to the event attribute, and then click **Remove**.

ASSOCIATING PARTITIONS TO VIDEO INPUTS

You can associate partition to cameras. Associating a partition to a camera restricts a non- associated user of the partition from viewing the camera or changing the settings of the camera.

Before you begin

• Add a Partition. See Adding a Partition for more information.

To associate partitions to video inputs

1. Click the **Partitions** tab. The screen displays the associated partitions, if any.

Honeywell				M	AXPRO™ VMS	<u>.</u>				_ = ×
Viewer Configurator		Search	H	elp						admin 🎎 🗸
Device View	be 1	Sequences]	Scan 1	[Partitions]	陰 [Users]	Sperator1	Monitor 2	🙀 Operator3	😑 DVR 4	Cameral X -
🗉 👗 Devices	Gene									•
Recorders Wideo Inputs	Assoc	iated Partitions								
Video Outputs			Description							
Relays Alarm Inputs		Default								
🖃 🕵 User Management										
Sers										Associate
E Groups										
Partitions										Remove
Workstations Sites										
								Save	Cancel	Close
🔹 🌢 [WIN2K8-64BIT2] 🛛 😁 Clip Export	Adr	ninistrator							Alarm(s) (34) 4:29:49 PM

Figure 3-11 Camera Partitions

- 2. Click Associate. The Select Partitions dialog box appears.
- 3. Select the check box corresponding to the partition name you want to associate.
- 4. Click **OK**. The selected partition is displayed in the list of associated partitions.

To disassociate partitions to camera

• Select the check box corresponding to the partition name, and then click **Remove**.

CONTROL SETTINGS

- 1. Select the **Locked** check box to prevent the user to control the device.
- 2. From the PTZ Done By drop-down list, select the required PTZ type.

The following table lists the PTZ types and steps to configure their settings.

Туре	Settings
Device	This setting is used when the PTZ camera is controlled using the recorder. The PTZ settings are done using the local applications of the recorder.

Туре	Settings
Serial Port	The followings settings are used when a PTZ camera is controlled by MAXPIT or MATPIT.a. In the Select Serial Port drop-down list, select the serial port.
	b. In the Source Control ID box, a default ID is displayed.
	c. In the Source Control Slot box, type the slot number within the control subrack where the controller for the current video input device resides.
	Note: Valid slot numbers are 1 – 32 for I/O and combination video/I/O subracks and 1 – 8 for HD Series subracks. Within subracks such as HMX1132 and HMX1600, the control slot is the physical slot where the controller card resides. Whereas within HD Series subracks (HMX32128) device control and I/O functions are mapped to pseudo slots as all of these functions exist on the subrack controller card (HMX128) located in slot 0. For VideoBloxsubrack, the control slot number should be greater than zero.Valid range: 1 to 4.
	d. In the Offset box, type the ID number of the PTZ site receiver connected to that camera.
	Note: The valid range for site IDs is 1 – 16. A 0 indicates that a hardwired relay output module is being used in the subrack slot for controlling that camera. Offset is the hardware address configured in the PTZ camera.

Video Inputs

Туре	Settings
Serial Port	The followings settings are used when a PTZ camera is controlled by MAXPIT or MATPIT.a. In the Select Serial Port drop-down list, select the serial port.
	b. In the Source Control ID box, a default ID is displayed.
	c. In the Source Control Slot box, type the slot number within the control subrack where the controller for the current video input device resides.
	Note: Valid slot numbers are 1 – 32 for I/O and combination video/I/O subracks and 1 – 8 for HD Series subracks. Within subracks such as HMX1132 and HMX1600, the control slot is the physical slot where the controller card resides. Whereas within HD Series subracks (HMX32128) device control and I/O functions are mapped to pseudo slots as all of these functions exist on the subrack controller card (HMX128) located in slot 0. For VideoBloxsubrack, the control slot number should be greater than zero.Valid range: 1 to 4.
	 In the Offset box, type the ID number of the PTZ site receiver connected to that camera.
	Note: The valid range for site IDs is 1 – 16. A 0 indicates that a hardwired relay output module is being used in the subrack slot for controlling that camera. Offset is the hardware address configured in the PTZ camera.

Туре	Settings
Switcher	The followings settings are used when a PTZ camera is controlled by a matrix switcher.a. In the Select Switcher drop-down list, select the switcher.
	b. In the Source Control ID box, a default ID is displayed.
	Note: The valid range for Control ID is 1 – 799, a value of 0 indicates no control capability for the device.
	c. In the Source Control Slot box, type the slot number within the control subrack where the controller for the current video input device resides.
	Note: Valid slot numbers are 1 – 32 for I/O and combination video/I/O subracks and 1 – 8 for HD Series subracks. Within subracks such as HMX1132 and HMX1600, the control slot is the physical slot where the controller card resides. Whereas within HD Series subracks (HMX32128) device control and I/O functions are mapped to pseudo slots as all of these functions exist on the subrack controller card (HMX128) located in slot 0.For VideoBlox subrack, the control slot number should be greater than zero. Valid range: 1 to 4.
	d. In the Offset box, type the ID number of the PTZ site receiver connected to that camera.
	Note: The valid range for site IDs is 1 – 16. A 0 indicates that a hardwired relay output module is being used in the subrack slot for controlling that camera. Offset is the hardware address configured in the PTZ camera.

- 3. In the **PTZ Viewer Sensitivity** drop-down list, select the required sensitiveness.
- 4. In the **Available Control Options** area, select the options to enable or disable the control functions. The available control functions vary between the different types of video input device as shown in the following figures.

The following tables lists the available control functions for different types of video input devices.

Camera	VCR or LoggingVCR or Standby VCR	Standard Device or Smart Device
Wash/Wipe	Record	Output1
Manual Iris	Play	Outpu2
Pan	Rewind	Output3
Tilt	Fast Forward	Output4
Focus	Slow	Output5
Zoom	Pause	Output6
Present View	Eject	Output7

Camera	VCR or LoggingVCR or Standby VCR	Standard Device or Smart Device
Ext/Walk/Flashback	Stop	Output8

UPDATING A VIDEO INPUT

You can update the camera to change the existing settings and configure new settings.

To update a video input

- 1. Click the **Configurator** tab.
- 2. Expand **Devices** in the navigation area, and then click **Video Inputs**. The **Video Inputs** screen appears in the display area.
- 3. Double-click the video input or select the check box corresponding to the video input, and then click Update.
- 4. The Video Input screen appears. Update the required settings.
- 5. Click Save.

DELETING A VIDEO INPUT

You can delete a video input when you do not want to record video from a site or do not want the display of a live video from a site. All the associations made to the video input are removed, when you delete it.

Before you begin

- Disassociate Partitions. See Associating Partitions to Video Inputs for more information.
- Disassociate Events. See Associating Events for more information.

To delete a video input

- 1. Click the **Configurator** tab.
- 2. Expand **Devices** in the navigation area, and then click **Video Inputs**. The **Video Inputs** screen appears in the display area.
- 3. Select the check box corresponding to the video input that you want to delete.
- Click **Delete**. A message asking for confirmation appears on the top of the display area.
- 5. Click Yes.

VIDEO OUTPUTS

.....

You can add various video output devices in MAXPRO VMS. You can add digital and analog monitors. The following types of video output devices are supported.

- Monitor Analog and Digital.
- Standard Device other devices, freeze frames and so on.
- Smart Device— devices such as multiplexers.
- Trunk trunk video input (from a networked system).
- VCR (video cassette recorder) dedicated or Dub VCR.
- Standby VCR Standby VCR as used in VCR Management.
- Digital Output Trunk to view analog camera video.

Analog monitors are connected to the switchers and display video from analog cameras. The digital monitors are connected to the client workstations. Each client workstation can connect up to four digital monitors.

VIDEO OUTPUTS AND PARTITIONS

A partition is a logical grouping of video devices. Partitions are associated to monitors. Monitors associated to a partition can be viewed or managed only by the users who are associated with it.

VIDEO OUTPUTS AND EVENT GROUPS

An event group is a set of events that occur on video devices. Event Groups are associated to monitors. An alarm is generated, When any event related to the monitor in the event group occurs.

ADDING VIDEO OUTPUTS

You can add digital and analog video outputs like monitors, smart devices, standard device, trunk, VCR, Standby VCR to display video. Video output devices like digital monitors are connected to the client workstations. The video output devices analog monitors are connected to the video matrix switchers.

Before you begin

- Add Site.
- Add Switcher (to associate the analog monitor).
- Add Workstation (to associate the digital monitor).
- Add Partition.
- Update Joystick Controller.

By default, a site and partition are available. You can associate the video outputs to them or create new.

To add a video output

- 1. Click the **Configurator** tab.
- 2. Expand **Devices** in the navigation area, and then click **Video Outputs**. The **Video Output** screen appears in the display area.

Honeywell Viewer	Configurator		Search	Help		MAXPRO™ VMS	, 						admin J	
	Conligurator													2
Device View				puts] 🗙 📟 [Re	corders]	Ba [Sequences]	🗞 Scan 1	[Partitions]	<u>\$</u>	[Users]	🙀 Operato	r1 📜	Monitor 2	_
Recorders			e/Delete Video(
Wideo Inputs		Ref		MdeoOutput Callup n	umber Vi	deoOutput Name	Description	Туре		Site		Workstation	Slot	
Video Outputs														
Alarm Inputs														
User Management														
G Groups														
Pla Sequences														
Partitions														
Workstations														
68														
		•						-						
			ord Count (0)						Ad					ľ
		Total Kec	a count (0)						Ad		Update		Delete	



3. Click Add. The Monitor screen appears by default.

Honeywell						MAXP	RO™ VMS				_ = ×
Viewer	Configurator	<u> </u>	earch	He							admin 🚑 🗸
Device View		Pa Scar	n1 🔛	[Partitions]	飸 [Users]	- 12	Operator1 🛄 Monitor	r 2 🎕 Operator3	📼 DVR 4	Cameral	Monitor 3 🗙 👻
Bevices Recorders		General	Partitions	Event Groups	Joystick Contro	oller					-
Wideo Inputs		Enter Video	Dutput details								
Video Outputs		VideoDutp	ut Settings								
Alarm Inputs		Device T	ype	Monito	r	•	Select Monitor Type				
User Management		- VideoΩui	tput Name	Monito		-	C Analog Monitor	Digital Monitor			
🖃 🌀 Groups		Descripti		Pionec		_					
Pla Sequences		Descripti	on			~					
Workstations Dig Sites							Default Salvo View		*		
Lig bites		* Callup Ni	Imber	3		_					
		Site		Defau	t	•	Launch In Full Screen				
		Device S									4 Þ
		Enter Monito									
		General Se	ttings								
		Select Wo	rkstation		NONE		×				
		* Workstati	on Monitor Nu	nber	0						
								-	Save	Cancel	Close
• • [WIN2K8-64BIT2]	🕒 Cip Export	Administr	ator						_	Alarm(s)	(34) 4:32:06 PM

Figure 3-13 Monitors

4. From the **Device Type** drop-down list, select the required device type. The currently supported video output device types are listed in the following table.

Click the corresponding links in the device column list to refer to the instructions while adding.

Video Input Device	Description
Monitor	For details on configuring the monitor, see <i>Adding Monitors</i> .

- 5. Associate Partition. See *Associating Partitions to Video Outputs* for more information.
- 6. Associate Joystick Controllers. See Associating Video Outputs to Joystick Controllers.
- 7. Associate Event Groups. See Associating Video Outputs to Event Groups for more information.
- 8. Click Save.

ADDING MONITORS

DIGITAL MONITOR

To add a digital monitor

- 1. Select the Digital Monitor under Select Monitor Type.
- 2. In the VideoOutput Name box, type the name for the monitor.
- 3. In the **Description** box, type a description for the monitor.
- 4. In the **Callup Number** box, an automatic number is allocated by default. The operator uses this number to select a monitor from the keyboard.
- 5. In the **Site** box, select the location in which the monitor is used.
- 6. In the Select Monitor Type section, click Digital Monitor.
- In the Default Salvo View drop-down list, select the default salvo view for the monitor.

Note: This feature helps in configuring the wall mounted digital monitors in a site to display live video from the selected salvo views.

- 8. Select the **Launch in Full Screen** check box to launch the selected default salvo view in full screen mode, whenever the monitor is turned on.
- In the Select Workstation drop-down list in Device Settings area, select the workstation to which the monitor is connected.
- **10.** In the **Workstation Monitor Number** box, type the number configured for the monitor during workstation setup.
- 11. Click Save.

ANALOG MONITOR

To add a analog monitor

- 1. Select the Analog Monitor under Select Monitor Type.
- 2. In the VideoOutput Name box, type the name for the monitor.
- 3. In the **Description** box, type a description for the monitor.
- 4. In the **Callup Number** box, an automatic number is allocated by default. The operator uses this number to select a monitor from the keyboard.
- 5. In the **Site** box, select the location in which the monitor is used.
- 6. In the Select Monitor Type section, click Analog Monitor.
- 7. Select the Lock VideoOutput check box to lock monitor from displaying video.
 - Note: A monitor can be locked or unlocked by selecting or clearing the Lock VideoOutput check box. When a monitor is locked, no operations on the monitor are allowed including the multi monitor function.
- 8. In the **Default Video Source** box, type the camera callup number of the camera from which the live video is to be displayed.
- 9. In the **Default Scan Sequence** box, type the scan sequence number.
- 10. Select the **Run Default Scan Sequence** check box to automatically begin the default scan sequence.
- **11.** In the **Slot** box, type the slot number to identify the slot location of the video output channel.
- Click the Net Device option, and then type the exact location and reference for the video
- **13.** Select the **LINK** check box, if you want to broadcast the status changes and actions performed on the current video output device on the network.
- 14. In the **Video Timeout** box, type the display time-out period. The display time-out period can be set from 1-999 seconds. Enter a value zero if this function is not required.
- **15.** In the **Text Line Settings** area, select the check boxes according to your requirement to select text line settings. The following table lists the options.

Option	Description
Message Line	Defines the line where the Message Line text (Example, Warning message) is displayed.
Mode Line	Defines the line where the Mode text (Example, Scan mode) is displayed.
Source Description	Defines the line the Video Input device description is displayed.
Channel Description	Defines the line where the description for the video device is displayed.
Real Time Clock	Defines the line the Real Time Clock is displayed.

Note: Selecting the Select All check box selects all the Text Line Settings.

16. In the **Text Display Settings** area, select the check boxes to select the text display settings. The following table lists the options.

Option	Description
Enhanced Card	To enhance the appearance of the text display.
Hidden Text	To hide the text display on the monitor.
Shadow	To apply shadow affect for the text display.
BackGround	To apply background affect for the text display.
Reverse Black/White	To reverse black/white affect for the text display.
Double Height	To increase the height of text display on monitor.
Flash	To display blinking text on the monitor.

Note: Selecting the Select All check box enables all the Text Display Settings.

- In the X and Y boxes, type a location for the text to appear on the monitor. Valid positions are 1 –13. X and Y coordinates represent the horizontal and vertical position respectively.
- 18. In the Device Macro Flags section, select the required fields to set the macro flag to True. This field allows for definition of the default cold boot state of the macro flags for the current video input device. Click Select All to set all the macro flags to True.
- 19. Click Save.

DELETING A VIDEO OUTPUT DEVICE

To delete a video output device

- 1. Click the Configurator tab.
- 2. Expand **Devices** in the navigation area, and then click **Video Outputs**. The **Video Outputs** screen appears in the display area.
- Select the check box corresponding to the video output device that you want to delete.
- Click **Delete**. A message asking for confirmation appears on the top of the display area.
- 5. Click Yes.

UPDATING A VIDEO OUTPUT DEVICE

You can update a video output device to change its association with a partition, joystick controller, and also to modify its settings.

To update a video output

- 1. Click the **Configurator** tab.
- 2. Expand **Devices** in the navigation area, and then click **Video Outputs**. The **Video Outputs** screen appears in the display area.
- 3. Select the check box corresponding to the video output you want to update.
- Click Update. The settings for the video output appear. You can modify the settings.
- 5. Click Save.

3

LOCKING THE DISPLAY ON THE MONITOR

The analog monitor can be locked to display the video only from a particular camera and field of view. The operator cannot perform pan, tilt, or zoom using a monitor with locked display.

To lock the display on a monitor

- 1. Click the Configurator tab.
- 2. Expand **Devices** in the navigation area, and then click **Video Outputs**. The **Video Outputs** screen appears in the display area.
- 3. Select the check box corresponding to the monitor you want to lock.
- 4. Double-click or click Update. The General Settings for the monitor appears.
- 5. Select the Lock VideoOuput check box.
- 6. Click Save.

ASSOCIATING PARTITIONS TO VIDEO OUTPUTS

You can add partitions to video outputs. A video output associated with a partition can be viewed and managed by a user who is in turn associated with the partition.

Before you begin

• Add a Partition. See Adding a Partition for more information.

To associate partitions to video outputs

- 1. Click the **Partitions** tab. The screen displays the associated partitions, if any.
- 2. Click Associate. The Select Partitions dialog box appears.
- 3. Select the check box corresponding to the partition name you want to associate.
- 4. Click OK. The selected partition is displayed in the list of associated partitions.

To disassociate partition from the video outputs

• Select the check box corresponding to the partition name, and then click **Remove**.

Associating Video Outputs to Event Groups

You can associate event groups to video outputs. Associating video outputs to event groups allows display of alarms that are associated with the event group.

Before you begin

• Add Event Group.

To associate event groups to video outputs

- 1. Click the Event Groups tab. The screen displays the associated event groups, if any.
- 2. Click Associate. The Select Event Groups dialog box appears.
- 3. Select the check box corresponding to the Event Group name you want to associate.
- 4. Click OK.

To disassociate event groups from video outputs

• Select the check box corresponding to the Event Group name, and then click **Remove**.

ASSOCIATING VIDEO OUTPUTS TO JOYSTICK CONTROLLERS

You can associate Joystick Controllers to monitors. Monitors associated to a joystick controller can be controlled by a user who is also associated with the joystick controller.

Before you begin

• Update Joystick Controller.

To associate joystick controllers to video output

- 1. Click the **Joystick Controller** tab. The screen displays the associated joysticks if any.
- 2. Click Associate. The Select Joystick Controller dialog box appears.
- 3. Select the check box corresponding to the joystick name you want to associate.
- 4. Click OK.

Note: By default, all the joystick controllers are associated when a user is added. You can remove the joystick that you do not require.

To disassociate Joystick Controller from a video output

• Select the check box corresponding to the joystick name, and then click **Remove**.

RELAYS

Relay is an output contact that can be triggered from MAXPRO VMS. Relays can be connected to devices like switcher, recorder, cameras, keyboard, and high level device. Relays send signals that perform various actions. For example, you can set a relay to open the door automatically when a motion is detected in a particular region.

.

.

ADDING THE RELAY

Before you begin

- Add Site. See Adding a Site for more information.
- Add Recorder. Adding a Recorder for more information.
- Add Partition. See Adding a Partition for more information.

By default, a site and a partition are available. You can associate the relay to them or create new.

To add a relay

- 1. Click the **Configurator** tab.
- 2. Expand **Devices** in the navigation area, and then click **Relays**. The **Relays** screen appears in the display area.

Honeywell			MAXPRO™	/MS		
	gurator Search	Help				admin 🧕
Device View		[Users] 🏦 Operato	x1 📜 Mon	tor 2 🎕 Operator3	DYR 4 Cameral	Monitor 3 🖉 🕁 [Relays] 🔉
Bevices Recorders	Add/Update/Delete Relay					
Wideo Inputs	Relay ID Relay De	scription Default State	Connected To	Network Auxiliary Output		
Video Outputs	1 Output1	False	RapidEye 2			
Relays	2 Output2	False	RapidEye 2	- ,		
Alarm Inputs	3 Output3	False	RapidEye 2			
😴 User Management	4 Output4	False	RapidEye 2			
State	5 Output5	False	RapidEye 2			
Groups	6 Output6	False	RapidEye 2			
Pla Sequences	7 Output7	False	RapidEye 2			
Workstations	8 Output8	False	RapidEye 2			
Sites						
Gg same						
	Total Record Count (8)				Add	Update Delete
			_		_	A
🖲 🔵 [WIN2K8-64BIT2] 🛛 🗁 🗅	Export Administrator					Alarm(s) (34) 4:34:36

Figure 3-14 Relays

3. Click Add. The Relay screen appears.

CONFIGURING DEVICES AND SETTING UP A SITE .

Honeywell		ł	1AXPRO™ VMS		_ = ×
Viewer Configurator	Search	Help			admin 😃 🗸
Device View	Scan 1	[Partitions] 隆 [Users]	🆄 Operator1 🛁 DVI	R 4 🏾 🏹 Camera1 🛛 💭 Monitor 3	⊕ [Relays] ⊕ Relay 10 × ▼
		Partonol (B) (Uars)	Output Details Output Details Output Default State On Output Default State On	R 4 De Cameral [] Kontor 3	▲ Relay 10 X ▼
				Save	Cancel Close
🔹 🌢 [WIN2K8-64BIT2] 🛛 🔗 Clip Export	Administrator				Alarm(s) (34) 4:35:45 PM

Figure 3-15 Relays General

- 4. In the **Callup Number** box, type the unique ID to identify the relay. By default MAXPRO VMS assigns the next available ID.
- 5. In the Relay Description box, type a description for the relay.
- In the Connected To section, click one of the devices from which you want to add a relay. The following table lists the available devices to which a relay can be connected.

Device	Description
Recorder	For details on connecting to a recorder, see <i>Connecting the relay to the Recorder</i> .

- Select the LINK check box if you want to broadcast the status changes and actions performed on the current relay on the network.
- Select the Output Default State On check box if you want the relay to be set to On, when the MAXPRO VMS is started.
- 9. Associate Partitions.
- 10. Click Save. The Trigger Relay options appear.
- **11.** Click **On** to trigger the relay.
- 12. Click Off to stop the relay.

CONNECTING THE RELAY TO THE RECORDER

Before you begin

• Add Recorders. See Adding a Recorder for more information.

To connect relay to a analog camera

1. From the **Recorder** drop-down list, select the required recorder. The Output Settings appear.

- 2. In the **Relay ID** box, type the relay ID number for the recorder.
- 3. In the Site ID box, type the site ID of the recorder.
- 4. In the Station ID box, type the station ID of the recorder.
- 5. In the Digital IO Type, type the digital IO type of the recorder.
- 6. In the Output Bit section, select the required output that needs to be controlled by the relay. Each relay can control one or more output bits. Click Select All if you want all the output bits to be controlled by a single relay.
- 7. Click Save.

Note: Steps 3 through 9 are required only when you are connecting to Enterprise recorder.

ASSOCIATING PARTITIONS TO THE RELAY

You can associate partition to relay. Associating a partition to a relay restricts a non - associated user of the relay from changing the settings of the relay.

Before you begin

• Add a Partition. See Adding a Partition for more information.

To associate partitions to relay

1. Click the **Partitions** tab. The screen displays the associated partitions, if any.

Honeywell							M/	4XPRO™	* VMS					
Viewer	Configurator		Search	ı	Help									admin 🤮
Device View			Scan 1	1	[Partitions]	193	[Users]	<u></u> 0	perator1	😁 DVR 4	Camera1	Monitor 3	(Relays]	👍 Relay 10 🛪
Devices Recorders		Gener	al Parti	tions										
Wideo Inputs		Associ	iated Partition	15										
Uideo Outputs		FI	Associated P	art C	escription	1								
Relays Alarm Inputs														
🖉 User Management														6
Sers														Associate
Ba Sequences														
Hartitions														Remove
Workstations Sites														
() <u>R</u> 5405														
				_		-	_	_						1995
												Save	Cancel	Close
• [WIN2K8-64BIT2]	🕒 Clip Export	Adm		-	_		_							(34) 4:36:45

Figure 3-16 Relays Partitions

- 2. Click Associate. The Select Partitions dialog box appears.
- 3. Select the check box corresponding to the partition name you want to associate.
- 4. Click **OK**. The selected partition is displayed in the list of associated partitions.

To disassociate partitions to relay

• Select the check box corresponding to the partition name, and then click **Remove**.

DELETING THE RELAY

You can delete a relay when you no longer want to trigger a task that is based on a relay.

Before you begin

• Disassociate Partitions. Associating Partitions to the Relay for more information.

To delete a relay

- 1. Click the **Configurator** tab.
- 2. Expand **Devices** in the navigation area, and then click relays. The **Relays** screen appears in the display area.
- 3. Select the check box corresponding to the relay that you want to delete.
- 4. Click **Delete**. A confirmation message appears on top of the display area.
- 5. Click Yes.

UPDATING THE RELAY

You can update a relay device to change its association with a partition and also to modify its settings.

To update a relay

- 1. Click the Configurator tab.
- 2. Expand **Devices** in the navigation area, and then click relays. The **Relays** screen appears in the display area.
- 3. Select the check box corresponding to the relay you want to update.
- 4. Click Update. The settings for the relay appear. You can modify the settings.

ALARM INPUTS

Alarm inputs are used to raise alarms through an external device in MAXPRO VMS. These alarm inputs can be associated to devices like recorder.

.

.

.......

ADDING AN ALARM INPUT

You can add an alarm input and associate it to the devices. These alarm inputs trigger alarm whenever an event occurs.

Before you begin

- Add Site. See Adding a Site for more information.
- Add Recorder. Adding a Recorder for more information.
- Add Partition. See Adding a Partition for more information.

By default, a site and a partition are available. You can associate the alarm input to them or create new.

To add an alarm input

- 1. Click the Configurator tab.
- 2. Expand the **Devices** branch in the navigation area, and then click **Alarm Inputs**. The **Alarm Input** screen appears in the display area.

Viewer Configurator		Search	Help		1AXPRO™ VMS					admir	n 🎴
Device View				Operator1	🖂 DVR 4	Cameral	Monitor 3	Relays]	D Relay 10) (Alarm Input)	_
2 Devices	-			Operator1	DVK 4	Calleral	Municur 3	CIB [Reidys]	CIDS Relay 10	- Cwiarui mbor	
Recorders	_	/Update/Delete Alarm									
📾 Video Inputs			Alarm Input Name	Connected To	Operating Mode	Normal State	Start Procedure	Finish Procedure	Severity	Enabled	
Video Outputs		5	Input1	RapidEye 2	DIRECT	OPEN			40	True	
D Relays		6	Input2	RapidEye 2	DIRECT	OPEN			40	True	
Alarm Inputs		7	Input3	RapidEye 2	DIRECT	OPEN			40	True	
Juser Management		8	Input4	RapidEye 2	DIRECT	OPEN			40	True	
Ser			Input5	RapidEye 2	DIRECT	OPEN			40	True	
G Groups Pla Sequences		10	Input6	RapidEye 2	DIRECT	OPEN			40	True	
Pla Sequences			Input7	RapidEye 2	DIRECT	OPEN			40	True	
Workstations		12	Input8	RapidEye 2	DIRECT	OPEN			40	True	
Stes		13	Input9	RapidEye 2	DIRECT	OPEN			40	True	
BK sees		14	Input10	RapidEye 2	DIRECT	OPEN			40	True	
			Input11	RapidEye 2	DIRECT	OPEN			40	True	
			Input12	RapidEye 2	DIRECT	OPEN			40	True	
			Input13	RapidEye 2	DIRECT	OPEN			40	True	
			Input14	RapidEye 2	DIRECT	OPEN			40	True	
			Input15	RapidEye 2	DIRECT	OPEN			40	True	
		20	Input16	RapidEye 2	DIRECT	OPEN			40	True	
🔹 🔹 (WIN2K8-64BIT2)	To	tal Record Count (16)					Add	Update	e Deleti	e

Figure 3-17 Alarm Input

Click Add. The Alarm Input screen appears.
CONFIGURING DEVICES AND SETTING UP A SITE -

Alarm Inputs '

Honeywell			MAXPRO™ VMS				_ = ×
Viewer Configurator	Search	Help					admin 🤐 🗸
Viewer Configurator	Search Crost Par Losers General Partbore Exter Alam Input Manale Ste Alam Input Number Ste Connected To (Master) C Seatcher C Recorder C Recorder C Recorder Link:	Alerm Input Alerm Input Default Done None None	Cameral T Monto	OPEN DIRECT) [Alam Irou]	
					Sav	e Canc	el Close
🔹 🔹 [WIN2K8-64BIT2] 🛛 🔗 Clip Export	Administrator					A	larm(s) (34) 4:39:30 PM



- The Enabled check box is selected by default. Clear this check box to disable the alarm input.
- 5. In the Alarm Input Name box, type the alarm input name.
- 6. From the Site drop-down list, select the required site.
- 7. In the Alarm Input Number box, type the alarm input number
- In the Normal State drop-down list, select Open or Closed as the normal state for the alarm input.
- 9. From the **Operating Mode** drop-down list, select the required mode. The available modes are listed in the following table.

Modes	Description
Direct	The alarm condition activates or de-activates when it physically changes state, or is set or cleared with macros.
Latched	Once the alarm is triggered, it remains active until it is reset manually using the alarm clear option.
Toggle	The first time the alarm is triggered it becomes active, the next time it is cleared.

10. In the **Connected To** section, click one of the devices for which you want to add the alarm input. The following table lists the available devices to which an Alarm Input can be connected.

Device	Description
Recorder	For details on connecting a recorder, see <i>Connecting Alarm Input to the Recorder</i> .

- **11.** Select the **LINK** check box if you want to broadcast the status changes and actions performed on the current alarm input on the network.
- **12.** Associate Partition.
- 13. Click Save.

Note: You can switch on or switch off an alarm input using the **On** and **Off** buttons under **Trigger Alarm Input**.

CONNECTING ALARM INPUT TO THE RECORDER

To connect alarm input to a recorder

- 1. From the **Recorder** drop-down list, select the required recorder. The **recorder settings** appear.
- 2. In the Alarm Input ID text box under Input Settings tab, type the Alarm Input ID.
- 3. On the Event Settings tab, specify the following details.

Settings	Description
Event Description	Type a description for the event.
Start Macro	Type an alarm start macro. When an alarm condition is detected for an alarm input, the alarm start macro is executed.
Finish Macro	Type an alarm finish macro. When a detected alarm input returns to its normal state, the alarm finish macro is executed.
Global ID	Type a unique global ID. If the Global Event ID is not assigned, MAXPRO VMS assigns a unique global ID automatically when you save the event settings.
Severity	Type a severity level. Note: Severity level is set to trigger alarms when the threshold is met. For example, if the threshold is set 50 in the preferences tab, an alarm is triggered when threshold becomes 51.

- 4. On the **Event Groups** tab, select the check box corresponding to the event group that you want to associate to the alarm input, and then click **Associate**.
- 5. Click Save.

ASSOCIATING PARTITIONS TO THE ALARM INPUT

You can associate partition to alarm inputs. Associating a partition to an Alarm Input restricts a non - associated user from viewing or modifying the Alarm Input.

Before you begin

• Add a Partition. See Adding a Partition for more information.

To associate partitions to alarm input

- 1. Click the **Partitions** tab. The screen displays the associated partitions, if any.
- 2. Click Associate. The Select Partitions dialog box appears.
- 3. Select the check box corresponding to the partition name you want to associate.
- 4. Click OK. The selected partition is displayed in the list of associated partitions.

To disassociate partitions from alarm input

• Select the check box corresponding to the partition name, and then click **Remove**.

DELETING THE ALARM INPUT

You can delete an alarm input when you do not want external device to raise an alarm. All the associations made to the alarm inputs are removed, when you delete it.

Before you begin

• Disassociate Partitions. *Associating Partitions to the Alarm Input* for more information.

To delete alarm input

- 1. Click the **Configurator** tab.
- 2. Expand **Devices** in the navigation area, and then click **Alarm Inputs**. The **Alarm Input** screen appears in the display area.
- 3. Select the check box corresponding to the alarm inputs that you want to delete.
- 4. Click Delete. A confirmation message appears on the top of the display area.
- 5. Click Yes.

UPDATING THE ALARM INPUT

You can update alarm input to change its association with a partition and also to modify its settings.

To update alarm input

- 1. Click the **Configurator** tab.
- 2. Expand **Devices** in the navigation area, and then click **Alarm Inputs**. The **Alarm Input** screen appears in the display area.
- 3. Select the check box corresponding to the alarm input you want to update.
- 4. Click **Update**. The settings for the alarm input appear. You can modify the settings.

USERS

A user in MAXPRO VMS is responsible for performing various operations like viewing video, reporting alarms, and other video surveillance tasks. You can create two types of users in MAXPRO VMS —System Local User and Windows User. Any new user when added is automatically associated to all the event groups and joystick controller. You can remove the association of a user to event groups and joystick controller to limit the access.

SYSTEM LOCAL USER

A system local user can access only MAXPRO VMS. This user may not have the access to client workstation.

WINDOWS USER

A windows user can access client workstation and also MAXPRO VMS.

USERS AND ROLES

Roles are provided to a user. These roles comprise in them a set of privileges. When a user is associated to a role, the privileges that are available for the role are also assigned to the user.

THE "ADMIN" USER

The first time MAXPRO VMS is deployed at a site, a default user named "admin" is created. The "admin" user is assigned the role "administrator". Only this user can add new users, assign roles to the added users, add or modify the privileges to the users, and also assign the users to partitions.

USERS AND PARTITIONS

A partition is a logical grouping of video devices. Partitions are associated to users. Users are directly associated to the partition which is associated to the role. Users can view and manage the video devices that are grouped inside the associated partitions. A user can also be associated to other partitions which are not associated to the assigned role.

USERS AND WORKSTATIONS

A workstation is a computer in which the MAXPRO VMS user interface is installed. Workstations are associated to Users. Users associated to a workstation can log on to MAXPRO VMS user interface and perform various actions. Users are directly associated to the workstation which is associated to the role. A user can be associated to other workstations also which are not associated to a role.

ADDING A USER

You can add a user by providing a unique user name and a password.

Only the "admin" user can add a new user in MAXPRO VMS.

After you add a new user, you can assign a role to it. After the role is assigned to the user, the privileges that are defined as a part of the role are also added to the user. You can add or remove any privileges for the specific user-role combination using the "Customized Privileges" option.

By default, a partition and a workstation are available. You can associate a user to them or create new.

To add a user

- 1. Click the **Configurator** tab.
- 2. Expand User Management in the navigation area, and then click Users. The Users screen appears in the display area.

				AXPRO™ VM:	ş:			
er Confi	gurator Search	He	••••					admin,
	ons] 🦄 (Use	rs] 🗙 🏦 Oper	ator1 🔛 Carr	eral 🛄 M	1onitor 3 🛛 🕁	[Relays] @ Relay 10	[Alarm Input]	Alarm Input 18
	Add/Update/Delete U	sers						
	User ID	User Name	User Description	Role	Customized			
	2	operator	Operator	Operator	No			
	101	admin	Administrator	Administrator	No			
	Total Record Count (2)	Discover				dd Upda	te Delete
		_						
🔐 Cip	Export Administrator							Marm(s) (34) 4:41:2



3. Click Add. The General Settings tab appears.

Honeywell		MAXPRO™ VMS		
Viewer Configurator	Search	Help		admin 🤐 🗸
Device View	[Sequences] B _{to} Scan 1	🎕 [Users] 🔌 Operator1 🛄 Monitor 3	👍 [Relays] 👍 Relay 10 🔘	[Alarm Input] 🍂 Operator4 🗙 🗸
Berdicas Meandars Media Inputs Media Inputs Delays Delays Delays Delays Delays Delays Pations Pations Pations Pations Pations Pations Pations Pations Pations		Controller Partitions User Workstations		
			Save	Cancel Close
DWIN2K8.64BIT21	Administrator			Alarm(s) (34) 4:44:22 PM

Figure 3-20 Adding User

- 4. In the User ID box, type a name for the user.
- 5. In the User Name box, type the name of the user.
- 6. In the **Description** box, type the required description.

- 7. In the **Role** box, select the role you want to assign to the user.
- 8. Select the **Customized Privileges** check box to enable or disable privileges for a user. The following table lists the privileges you can enable for a user.

Privileges	Description
Viewer	
Viewer Access	To restrict access to viewer tab.
Site View	To view sites.
Alarm	To view alarms.
ImageClipTreeView	To view image clip tree.
MyDevices	To view MyDevices.
Reloading Device Connections	To reload the device connections.
Iris Access	To access iris of the camera.
Focus Access	To access focus access of the camera.
Monitors	To view monitors.
Sequences	To view sequences.
Salvo Views	To view salvo.
Add My Salvo View	To add my salvo view.
Modify My Salvo View	To modify my salvo view.
Delete My Salvo View	To delete my salvo view.
Add Shared Salvo View	To add shared salvo view.
Modify Shared Salvo View	To modify shared salvo view.
Delete Shared Salvo View	Delete Shared Salvo View
Enable/Disable Camera	To enable or disable the cameras.
Time Line	
TimeLine Access	To allow user to access TimeLine window.
Clip Delete	To delete video clips.
Image Delete	To delete images.
Create Loop	To allow user to create loop.
Update loop	To allow user to update loop.
Clip Creation	To allow user to create clips.
Configurator	

CONFIGURING DEVICES AND SETTING UP A SITE .

.

Privileges	Description
Configurator Access	To allow user to access configurator.
Add Relay	To add relay.
Update Relay	To update relay.
Delete Relay	To delete relay.
Add Alarm Input	To add an alarm input.
Update Alarm Input	To update an alarm input.
Delete Alarm Input	To delete an alarm input.
Cold/Warm Boot	To allow user to boot.
Add User	To add new users.
Delete User	To allow user to delete new users.
Modify User Privilege	To modify user privilege.
Add Recorder	To allow user to add recorder.
Update Recorder	To allow user to update recorder.
Delete Recorder	To allow user to delete recorder.
Add Video Input	To allow user to add Video Input.
Update Video Input	To allow user to update video input.
Delete Video Input	To allow user to delete video input.
Add Video Output	To allow user to add video output.
Update Video Output	To allow user to update video output.
Delete Video Output	To allow user to delete video output.
Add Sequence	To allow user to add sequence.
Update Sequence	To allow user to update sequence.
Delete Sequence	To allow user to delete sequence.
Add Partition	To allow user to add a partition.
Update Partition	To allow user to update a partition.
Delete Partition	To allow user to delete a partition.
Add Site	To allow user to add a site.
Update Site	To allow user to update a site.
Delete Site	To allow user to delete a site.
Add Workstation	To allow user to add a workstation.
Update Workstation	To allow user to update a workstation.
Delete Workstation	To allow user to delete a workstation.
Search	

Privileges	Description								
Search Access	To allow user to access search features.								
Controller Operator Privileges									
Display Name	To display the users name.								
Multiple SignOn	To allow user to be signed on to more than one keyboard at a time.								
Swap PTZ Up Down	To reverse the up/down control of a pan/tilt camera when it is being used by user.								
Scan Set	To allow user to edit scan sequences.								
Camera View Set	To allow user to set PTZ camera views.								
UserMacro Set	To allow user to create user keyboard macros								
Camera Analog PTZ	To allow user to set PTZ options for analog camera.								
Standard Device	To allow user to control standard device functions.								
Video Recorder	To allow user to control VCR functions.								
Controller Menu Acce	ess								
Set Clock	To allow user to set the system time and date.								
SignOff	To allow user to sign off from a key board.								
Alarm Enable Disable	To allow system user to enable or disable system alarms.								

Note: To enable all the privileges select the **Allow All** check box and to deny all the privileges, select the **Deny All check** box.

- 9. From the User Type drop-down list, select **System Local User** or **Windows User**.
- 10. In the **Password** box, type the user password.
- 11. In the **Confirm Password** box, retype the user password.
- 12. In the **Pin Number** box, type the Pin number. The Pin number is required only for Ultrakey keyboard and not required for MAXPRO VMS client login.
- 13. In the User Priority box, type the priority of the user.
- 14. In the Keyboard Timeout (Sec) box, type the time out value.
- 15. In the Auto SignOff Period (Sec) box, type the time out value.
- 16. In the Sign On Macro box, type the sign on macro.
- 17. In the Sign Off Macro box, type the sign off macro.
- 18. Associate Partitions. See Associating Partitions to the User for more information.
- **19.** Associate Joystick Controllers. See *Associating joystick controller to users* for more information.
- **20.** Associate Event Groups. See *Associating Event Groups to Users* for more information.

- **21.** Associate Workstations. *Associating Workstations to the Users* for more information.
- 22. Click Save.

Associating Partitions to the User

You can associate partitions to a user. Associating partitions to a user enables the user to perform video surveillance tasks for all the video devices that are grouped in the partition.

You can associate more than one partition to a user.

Before you begin

• Add a Partition. See Adding a Partition for more information.

To associate partitions to a user

1. Click the **Partitions** tab. The screen displays the associated partitions, if any.

oneywell			MAXI	PRO™ VMS				
Viewer Configu	ator Search	Help						admin 🤗
Device View	[Sequences]	Scan 1 🙀 [Users]	De 🕅 🕅	rator1 🔲 Monitor 3	D [Relays]	B Relay 10	[Alarm Input]	🕅 (0perator4)
Devices	General Event Gr	ups Joystick Controller	Partitions	User Workstations				
Recorders Wideo Inputs	Associated Partitions							
Uideo Outputs	Associated Part	Description Gran	t Permission					
Relays Alarm Inputs	Default		v					
User Management								
Secure Groups								Associate
Pta Sequences								
Partitions								Remove
Workstations Sites								
	_					Save	Cancel	Close
🕨 [WIN2K8-64BIT2] 🛛 🙆 Clip E:	ort Administrator	1						i(s) (34) 4:54:3

Figure 3-21 User Partitions

- 2. Click Associate. The Select Partitions dialog box appears.
- 3. Select the check box corresponding to the partition name you want to associate.
- 4. Click OK.
- To disassociate partitions from a user
- Select the check box corresponding to the partition name, and then click **Remove**.

ASSOCIATING WORKSTATIONS TO THE USERS

You can associate workstations to users to log on to MAXPRO VMS user interface and perform various actions.

Before you begin

Add a Workstation. Adding a Workstation for more information.

To associate a user to workstation

1. Click the **User Workstations** tab. The screen displays the associated workstations if any.

loneywell								MA)	(PRO™	VMS										
Viewer	Configurator		Searc			lelp													adm	in 🤰
Device View			ences]	50		🚖 [Us			perator1		Monitor 3	- D	[Relays]	AD R	elay 10	0	[Alarm Input]		Operato	r4 🗙
Devices Recorders		Gener	al Even	it Group:	s Joystick	Controlle	r Parl	titions	User Wo	rkstatio	ns									
📾 Video Inputs		Associ	ated User P.	artitions																
Video Outputs		FI	Associated '	Wor	Description	0	irant Perm	ission												
Alarm Inputs																				
User Management Stress																			Associa	ie
G Groups																		_	1000010	
Big Sequences																		_		
Partitions Workstations																			Remov	8
Die Sites																				
	P			_		_	_	_			_	_	-	_				-		_
															Save		Cancel		Clos	e
[WIN2K8-64BIT2]	🔒 Clip Export	Adm	ninistrator														Alarn	n(s) (34	1 4.5	5:18

Figure 3-22 User Workstations

- 2. Click Associate. The Select User Workstation dialog box appears.
- 3. Select the check box corresponding to the workstation name you want to associate.
- 4. Click OK.

To disassociate workstation from a user

• Select the check box corresponding to the workstation name, and then click **Remove**.

ASSOCIATING JOYSTICK CONTROLLER TO USERS

You can associate users to joystick controllers to perform video surveillance tasks in MAXPRO VMS.

Before you begin

Add a joystick controller.

To associate the joystick controller to a user

 Click the Joystick Controller tab. The screen displays the associated joysticks if any.

oneywell	MAXPRO™ VMS	
Viewer Configu	ator Search Help	admin 🤮
Device View	[Sequences] 🗞 Scan I 🎕 [Users] 🎕 Operator I 🔲 Monitor 3 🍙 [Relays] 👍 Relay 10 🕲 [Alarm Input] 🥂 🦄 Operator4 🗙
Devices	General Event Groups Joystick Controller Partitions User Workstations	
Recorders		
Wideo Inputs	Associated Joystick controllers	
Video Outputs Alph Relays	Associated Joy Connected to	<u> </u>
 Alarm Inputs 	Joystick1 WIN2K8-648IT2	
User Management	Joystick2 WIN2K8-64BIT2	
😫 Users	Joystid3 WIN2K8-648IT2	Associate
Groups	Joystick4 WIN2K8-648IT2	
Bits Sequences	JoystidS WIN2K8-648172	
Partitions	Joystická WIN2K8-64BIT2	Remove
Workstations	Joystick7 WIN2K8-64BIT2 Joystick8 WIN2K8-64BIT2	
ig Sites	Joystick9 WIN2K8-64BIT2	
	Joystolo WIN2K8-6481T2	
	Joystick1 WIRk8-6481Z	
	Ovytick12 WINK86-640172	
	Joystick1 WN02K6-64BIT2	
	Joystici 4 WINX88-6481T2	
	Joystick15 WIN2K8-64BIT2	
	Joystick16 WIN2K8-64BIT2	
	Joystick17 WIN2K8-64BIT2	
	Joystick18 WIN2K8-64BIT2	
	Joystick19 WIN2K8-64BIT2	
	Joystick20 WIN2K8-648IT2	
	Joystick21 WIN2K8-64BIT2	
	Joystick22 WIN2K8-64BIT2	
	Joystick23 WIN2K8-648IT2	
	Joystick24 WIN2K8-64BIT2	
	Joystick25 WIN2K8-64BIT2	
	Joystick26 WIN2K8-648IT2	
	Joystide?7 WIN2K8-64BIT2	
	Joystick28 WIN2K8-6481T2	
	Joystid29 WIN2R8-64BT2	
	Joystick30 WIN2K8-648172 Joystick31 WIN2K8-648172	
	Joystick32 WIN2K8-64BIT2 Joystick33 WIN2K8-64BIT2	
	Joystick34 WIN2K8-64BIT2	
		<u> </u>
	Save	Cancel Close
[WIN2K8-64BIT2] Gip E	port Administrator	Alarm(s) (34) 4:56:07

Figure 3-23 User Joystick Controller

- 2. Click Associate. The Select Joystick Controller dialog box appears.
- 3. Select the check box corresponding to the joystick name you want to associate.
- 4. Click OK.

By default, all the joystick controllers are associated when a user is added. You can remove the joystick controllers that you do not require.

To disassociate Joystick Controller from user

• Select the check box corresponding to the joystick name, and then click **Remove**.

ASSOCIATING EVENT GROUPS TO USERS

You can associate a user to a event group to acknowledge the event that occurs in it.

Before you begin

• Add Event Group.

To associate a event group to a user

 Click the Event Groups tab. The screen displays the associated event groups if any. 3

Viewer Configurato		Search		Help							admin 🚑
Device View	[Sequ	ences] 🕅	Scan 1	🛐 [Use	s] 🕅 🧿	perator1	Monitor 3	D [Relays]	D Relay 10	[Alarm Input]) @ Operator4 🗙
🗄 🦾 Devices	Gener	ral Event Grou	ips Jo	ystick Control		User Wo	orkstations				
Recorders	Assoc	iated EventGroup									
Uideo Outputs		Associated Eve	Descripti	~							
D Relays	ľď		EventGro								
Alarm Inputs Josef Management											
2 Users											Associate
G Groups											
Partitions											Remove
Workstations Stes											Remove
🙀 Sites											
			-								1453
	_								Save	Cancel	Close

Figure 3-24 User Event Groups

- 2. Click Associate. The Select Event Groups dialog box appears.
- Select the check box corresponding to the Event Group name you want to associate.
- 4. Click OK.

To disassociate event group from a user

 Select the check box corresponding to the Event Group name, and then click Remove.

DISCOVERING AND IMPORTING USERS

You can discover users connected to a domain or workstation and add them to the MAXPRO VMS.

To discover and import users

- 1. Click the **Configurator** tab.
- 2. Expand User Management in the navigation area, and then click Users. The Users screen appears in the display area.
- 3. Click Discover. The User Discovery Details screen appears.
- 4. In the **Domain/Workgroup** drop-down list, select the domain or workgroup.
- 5. In the Name Filter box, type the name which you want to discover.
 - **Note:** If you want to search more than one name belonging to the same category, type the full name or partial name succeeded by a "*", and then click Query. For example, to search users who have their first name as John, type John* or Joh*, and then click Query.

- 6. Click **Query**. The results are displayed in the Results section. The users who are not added to MAXPRO VMS are listed in green color.
- 7. Select the check box corresponding to the required user.
- 8. In the User Role drop-down list, select a role for the user.
- 9. Click Import. The user is added and his name is listed in red color.

Note: You can skip step 5 if you do not want to use name filter option.

10. Click Reset to restore default settings or to discover new users.

UPDATING A USER

You can modify the settings of user to change the user ID, password and enable privileges. You can update user settings only if you have admin rights.

To update a user

- 1. Click the Configurator tab.
- 2. Expand User Management in the navigation area, and then click Users. The Users screen appears in the display area.
- 3. Select the check box corresponding to the user.
- Click Update. The general settings for the user appear. You can modify the settings.

DELETING A USER

You can remove a user from MAXPRO VMS. When you delete a user, all the associations made to the user are also removed.

To delete a user

- 1. Click the **Configurator** tab.
- 2. Expand User Management in the navigation area, and then click Users. The Users screen appears in the display area.
- 3. Select the check box corresponding to the user you want to delete.
- Click **Delete**. A message asking for confirmation appears on the top of the display area.
- 5. Click Yes.

ROLES

The users in MAXPRO VMS perform various video surveillance operations. The surveillance operations can be monitoring the live video, recording scenes of interest and so on. Some of these operations can be critical while some can be routine ones that are performed every day.

A user can be responsible for carrying out the routine tasks or critical tasks. This responsibility for performing various tasks is provided to the users by means of roles. With every role, there are a set of predefined privileges that are also assigned to the user. While a role can be just a label that is assigned to a user, like Operator or Administrator, it is the privileges that provide the right and responsibility for carrying out the operations.

Administrator and operator are the predefined roles in MAXPRO VMS and consists of a set of privileges. The role Administrator cannot be deleted or updated. Apart from the predefined roles, you can add a new role with a set of privileges. When you associate users to the role, the privileges that are defined as a part of the role is also added to the user. Any new partition and workstation added are automatically associated to the administrator role. If required, you can also add or remove privileges for a user-role combination. The modified set of privileges is applied only to the specific user-role combination and does not change the privilege set for the role.

ROLES AND PARTITIONS

A partition is a logical grouping of video devices. Partitions are associated to Roles. Roles are assigned to users, which enable them to view and manage the video devices that are grouped inside the associated partitions.

ROLES AND WORKSTATIONS

A workstation is a computer in which the MAXPRO VMS user interface is installed. Workstations are associated to Roles. Roles are assigned to users which enables them to log on to MAXPRO VMS user interface and perform various actions.

SEQUENCES

.....

A sequence is a set of live video streamed one after the other from cameras for a specified time interval. You can select the cameras or presets to be included in a sequence and also specify the time interval for which the video from each camera or preset must be displayed.

Note: Presets must be defined for the cameras before including them in the sequence

CREATING A SEQUENCE

You can create a sequence to display video that is being captured from different cameras located across the sites.

To create a sequence

- 1. Click the Configurator tab.
- 2. Expand **Groups** in the navigation area, and then click **Sequences**. The **Sequences** screen appears in the display area.
- 3. Click Add. The Scan screen appears.
- 4. From the **Sequence** Type drop-down list, select the required sequence type. The available sequence types are listed in the table.

Sequence Type	Description
Scan	During a Scan sequence operation, camera selection entries are wrapped around when the end of the scan sequence is reached. This mode of operation continues until the scan sequence is halted.
Tour	During a Tour sequence, the scan sequence is stepped through only once.
Index	When Index is selected for this field, it indicates that the table is used to hold information for complex macro programming.

- 5. In the **Description** box, type a name for the sequence.
- 6. Follow steps 7 through 11 if you select Scan or Tour as scan type.

If you select index type:

- In the Sequence Type drop-down list, select Index.
- Type the index value corresponding to the camera ID.
- Click Save.
- 7. In the **Dwell Time** box, type the dwell time, in seconds, for the camera to display video before advancing to next camera.
- 8. In the Select Cameras list, click . The Select from List dialog box appears.

- 9. Select the check box corresponding to the cameras that must be included in the sequence.
- 10. Click **OK** to close the **Select from List** dialog box. The cameras included in the sequence appear in the Select Cameras list.
- **11.** To include presets in the sequence, type the preset number in the **Preset** column next to a camera. The video from each camera in the list is displayed sequentially.

Note: If the value is zero in the preset column, the presets are not included in the sequence. By default, presets are zero for a fixed camera.

12. Click Save.

PLAYING A SEQUENCE

To play a sequence

- 1. Click the Viewer tab.
- 2. Click the Sequences window.
- Double-click the sequence you want to play or select the sequence, and then click Play Sequence. You can drag and drop the sequence on a panel in the salvo layout.

You can also play a sequence using the joystick controller (Ultrakey keyboard). See About *Relays* for more information.

REARRANGING THE CAMERAS IN THE SEQUENCE

You can rearrange the cameras and presets in the sequence. When you rearrange them, the sequence of live video streaming from each of the cameras is altered based on the rearrangement.

To rearrange the cameras

- 1. Select the check box corresponding to the camera you want to rearrange inside the sequence.
- 2. Click 1 to move the camera one row up, or click I to move the camera one row down.
- 3. Click Save.

REMOVING CAMERAS FROM THE SEQUENCE

You can delete a camera from a sequence, when you do not want to view the live video from it as a part of the sequence. $\$

To remove cameras from a sequence

- 1. In the **Select Cameras** list, select the check box corresponding to the cameras you want to remove.
- 2. Click the into remove the cameras from the sequence.
- 3. Click Save.

REMOVING PRESETS FROM THE SEQUENCE

You can remove a preset when you do not want it to be associated with a sequence.

To remove presets from a camera

- 1. In the **Preset** column, delete the preset number next to the camera.
- 2. Click Save.

LOCKING A SEQUENCE

You can lock an existing sequence to prevent the users from modifying it.

To lock a sequence

- 1. Select the Locked check box.
- 2. Click Save.

UPDATING A SEQUENCE

Updating a sequence allows you to change the sequence of video display from cameras.

To update a sequence

- 1. Click the **Configurator** tab.
- 2. Expand **Groups** in the navigation area, and then click **Sequences**. The **Sequences** screen appears in the display area.
- 3. Select the check box corresponding to the sequence you want to update.
- 4. Click **Update**. You can change the sequence of the cameras.

DELETING A SEQUENCE

To delete a sequence

- 1. Click the **Configurator** tab.
- 2. Expand **Groups** in the navigation area, and then click **Sequences**. The **Sequences** screen appears in the display area.
- 3. Select the check box corresponding to the sequence.
- 4. Click **Delete**. A message asking for confirmation appears on the top of the display area.
- 5. Click Yes.

PARTITIONS

......

A partition is a logical grouping of recorders, video inputs, switchers, and video outputs across various sites. Partitions are created for granting specific access rights to the users of MAXPRO VMS.

You can add a new partition by specifying a unique ID and a description. After adding a partition, you can add video devices to it.

You can also delete a partition when it is no longer needed. Before deleting a partition, disassociate the video devices from it and also unassign it from the user.

DEFAULT PARTITION

A default partition is automatically created in MAXPRO VMS and all the newly added video devices are associated to it. Since, all the new devices are a part of the default partition, all users logging on to MAXPRO VMS can view them.

PARTITIONS AND USERS

Partitions are associated to the users. They can view and manage the video devices that are grouped inside the associated partitions.

PARTITIONS AND ROLES

Partitions are associated to roles. Roles are assigned to users. A user can view and manage the video devices that are grouped inside the associated partitions.

PARTITIONS AND VIDEO DEVICES

Partitions are associated to devices like cameras and recorders, Users associated to a partition can view and manage all the devices grouped inside it.

ADDING A PARTITION

You can add a partition by specifying a unique identification number and a description.

Note: By default, a global partition is added in MAXPRO VMS and all video devices are associated to it.

To add a partition

- 1. Click the Configurator tab.
- Expand Groups in the navigation area, and then click Partitions. The Partitions screen appears in the display area.

CONFIGURING DEVICES AND SETTING UP A SITE .

Partitions '

Honeywell Viewer	Configurator		Search		Help		MAXE	RO™ V№	IS								admin	
Device View	conigation	_					10-11-11-11	r V	Pa 1 - 3	r		Ye		10-		Y		_
Devices		-		Scan			Moniti		[Relays]	40	Relay 10	9	[Alarm Input]	19	Operator4	2 E I	[Partitions]	×
Recorders			Can Perform Add ,			rations to	o Conrigure Parti	100										
Video Inputs		旧	Partition ID		scription fault													_
All video Outputs (D) Relays		B	1		raulic rtition 1													
Alarm Inputs																		
User Management																		
Groups		-																
Phy Sequences		E																
Partitions																		
Workstations		L																
68		Ŀ																
		E																
		-																
		Ŀ																
		-																
		Ŀ-																
		E																
		E																
		L																
		-																
		-																
		L-																
		F																
		Tot	al Record Count (2	2)									Add		Save		Delete	
												_						



3. Click Add. By default, the Partition ID and Description are displayed.

Note: You can change the default **Partition ID** and **Description**.

4. Click Save.

DELETING A PARTITION

You can delete a partition when you no longer need it. Before deleting a partition, ensure that you disassociate all video devices and unassign the user.

Before you begin

Disassociate all the devices, relays, users, and roles associated to the partition.

To delete a partition

- 1. Click the **Configurator** tab.
- 2. Expand **Groups** in the navigation area, and then click **Partitions**. The **Partitions** screen appears in the display area.
- 3. Select the check box corresponding to the partition you want to remove.
- Click **Delete**. A message asking for confirmation appears on the top of the display area.
- 5. Click Yes.

WORKSTATIONS

A client workstation is a computer in which the MAXPRO VMS user interface is installed. A user can log on to MAXPRO VMS interface through workstations and perform various operations.

.

WORKSTATIONS AND USERS

Users are directly associated to the workstation which is associated to the role. A user can be associated to other workstations which are not associated to a role.

See Associating Workstations to the Users for more information.

ADDING A WORKSTATION

A user can log on to MAXPRO VMS user interface through client workstation. Workstation name is the computer name of the client computer.

To add a workstation

- 1. Click the **Configurator** tab.
- 2. Expand **Groups** in the navigation area, and then click **Workstations**. The **Workstations** screen appears in the display area.

Honeywell						MA	XPRO™ VMS					
Viewer	Configurator	<u> </u>	Search		Help						alanose.	dmin 🧕
Device View		1	陰 [Users]		Monitor 3		D Relay 10	[Alarm Input]	Dperator4	[Partitions]	🖉 📕 [Workstat	ions] 🗙
Recorders		User	Can Perform Add ,Sa	ve and D	elete Operal	tions To Configure \	Vorkstation					
Wideo Inputs			Workstation Name									
Video Outputs		P	WIN2K8-64BIT2									
Alarm Inputs												
😴 User Management												
Sers		-										
Pla Sequences		-										
Hartitions												
Workstations												
ligg okes												
		-										
		-										
		E										
		-										
		E										
		-										
		Tot	al Record Count (1)						Add	Sav	P Dr	elete
									Xuu			
👂 🔵 [WIN2K8-64BIT2]	🔐 Clip Export	Ad	ministrator							,	Marm(s) (34)	5:00:28

Figure 3-26 Workstations

- 3. Click Add. A new workstation gets added to the list.
- 4. Rename the workstation name if necessary.
- 5. Click Save.

DELETING A WORKSTATION

You can delete a workstation. When you delete a workstation, all the associations made to the workstation are also removed.

To delete a workstation

- 1. Click the **Configurator** tab.
- 2. Expand **Groups** in the navigation area, and then click **Workstations**. The **Workstations** screen appears in the display area.
- 3. Select the check box corresponding to the workstation you want to remove.
- 4. Click **Delete**. A message asking for confirmation appears on the top of the display area.
- 5. Click Yes.

SITE

Site is a location where video input devices are situated. You can define more than one site in MAXPRO VMS. A default site is automatically created in MAXPRO VMS and all the video input devices can be associated to it.

Adding a Site

You can add a site to associate video inputs, recorders, switchers, video outputs, and workstations.

To add a site

- 1. Click the **Configurator** tab.
- 2. Expand **Groups** in the navigation area, and then click **Sites**. The **Sites** screen appears in the display area.

Viewer Confid	MAXFRO** VMS gurator Search Hep	admin 🞴
Device View		[Workstations]
Devices	user Can Perform Add , Save and Delete Operations. To Configure Site	
Recorders		
Video Inputs	Description Default	
Video Outputs	Deraut	
Alarm Inputs		
User Management		
Servers Groups		
Bia Sequences		
Partitions		
Workstations		
10 Sites		
	Total Record Count (1) Add	Save Delete
🕨 [WIN2K8-64BIT2] 🛛 🙆 Clip	Export Administrator	Alarm(s) (34) 5:01:33

Figure 3-27 Sites

- 3. Click Add.
- 4. A new site gets added to the list. You can rename the site name if necessary.
- 5. Click Save.

DELETING A SITE

Before you begin

• Disassociate all the associations to the site.

To delete a site

- 1. Click the **Configurator** tab.
- 2. Expand **Groups** in the navigation area, and then click **Sites**. The **Sites** screen appears in the display area.
- 3. Select the check box corresponding to the site you want to delete.

- 4. Click **Delete**. A message asking for confirmation appears on the top of the display area.
- 5. Click Yes.



MONITORING A SITE

SALVO LAYOUTS AND PANELS

The salvo layout is an arrangement of panels that displays video. You can view the salvo layout when you select the Viewer tab. At a time, you can select one of the salvo layouts from the toolbar on the top of the screen. For example, if you want to view video from two cameras, select a salvo layout with two or more panels.

Following are the features of the salvo layout.

EASY VIDEO SOURCE SELECTION

You can drag and drop a video source such as a camera or scan sequence from the Site window on the Salvo layout. The video is displayed in the panel of the salvo layout. You can also double-click the video source name to select it.

MULTIPLE VIDEO SOURCE SELECTION

You can drag and drop multiple video sources from the Site window on the salvo layout. The salvo layout starts displaying video from the devices in different panels

Note: Ensure that enough panels are available before you drag and drop multiple video sources on the salvo layout. This is necessary to avoid automatic closing of the present video display. For example, if a salvo layout consists of only one panel displaying video, select another salvo layout containing more panels before dragging and dropping multiple video sources.

MULTIPLE PANEL SELECTION

You can select multiple panels on the salvo layout. This enables you to perform actions on multiple video displays simultaneously. For example, you can select multiple video display and start recording of video, apply color correction, and perform other similar actions. See *Video Control Options in Panel Toolbars*.

CONTEXT MENU COMMANDS

When you right-click on a panel, a context-menu appears. The commands in the context-menu vary based on the type of video display such as live or recorded. See *Viewing Live Video*.

Salvo Layouts and Panels

ENLARGED DISPLAY

You can double-click a panel to maximize its size and view an enlarged display of the video. Double-click the panel again to restore the panel to its original size.

SALVO VIEWS

Salvo views enable you to save a salvo layout. The cameras and scan sequences displaying video in a salvo layout is saved in a salvo view. When you want to view video from the same cameras and scan sequences again, you can select the corresponding salvo view.

IDENTIFYING THE TYPE OF VIDEO DISPLAY

The type of video displayed in a panel is indicated. For example, **Live** for live video and **Rec** for recorded video.

SWAPPING OF VIDEO DISPLAY BETWEEN PANELS

The video display in a panel can be dragged and dropped on another panel. This feature lets you swap the video display between panels.

ADDING DEVICES TO MY DEVICES WINDOW

The video display in a panel can be dragged and dropped on **My Devices** window. This adds the video source such as the camera or sequence to the tree structure in **My Devices** window.

PANEL TOOLBARS

Hovering the mouse over a panel displays a toolbar. The toolbar that appears on top of a panel enables you to view the name of the video source and close the video display. The toolbar that appears on the bottom of a panel consists of icons that enable you to zoom in and zoom out the video display, cancel the digital PTZ effects on the video display, and perform color correction on the video display. You can also move the camera to a preset position, save a preset position, and start recording of video. See Video Control Options in Panel Toolbars.

.

SALVO VIEW

CREATING A SALVO VIEW

- 1. Click the Viewer tab.
 - **Note:** Before you create a salvo view, select the salvo layout you want and the preferred cameras and scan sequences. The selected salvo layout, cameras, and scan sequences are saved in the salvo view.
- 2. Right-click on the toolbar, and then click **Create Salvo view** or Click the ison the toolbar on the top of the salvo layout. A drop down box appears.
- 3. To create a salvo view, in the Enter salvo view name box, type a name for the salvo view and click **OK**. Goto step 5.
- 4. To create a shared salvo view, in the **Enter salvo view** name box, type a name for the salvo view, and then click **Shared Salvo** check box. Goto step **6**.
- 5. The salvo view is created and appears in the **My Salvo Views** under **Views** window.
- 6. The salvo view is created and appears in the **Shared Salvo Views** under **Views** window.

SELECTING A SALVO VIEW

To select a salvo view

• In the **Views** window, double-click the salvo view or drag and drop the salvo view on the salvo layout or right-click the salvo view in the **Views** window, and then click **Show**.

RENAMING THE SALVO VIEW

To rename the salvo view

- 1. Right-click the salvo view in the Views window, and then click Rename.
- 2. Type a new name for the salvo view in the Site window and press ENTER.

EDITING THE SALVO VIEW

To edit the salvo view

You can edit the salvo view when you want to,

- change the cameras in the existing salvo view
- change the salvo layout for the existing salvo view

CHANGING CAMERAS IN THE EXISTING SALVO VIEW

- 1. In the **Views** window, double-click the salvo view or drag and drop the salvo view on the salvo layout or right-click the salvo view in the **Views** window, and then click **Show**.
- 2. Realign the cameras or add new cameras in the same salvo view layout.

3. Click Save Salvo View in the salvo view pane.

CHANGING THE SALVO LAYOUT FOR THE EXISTING SALVO VIEW

Method one

- 1. Select a salvo layout and re-align cameras if you want.
- 2. In the **Views** window, right-click the salvo view for which you want to change the layout, and then click **Save**.

Method two

- 1. Select a salvo layout and re-align cameras if you want.
- 2. Click the i on the toolbar on the top of the salvo layout. A drop-down list appears.
- 3. In the Enter salvo view name box, type the salvo view name for which you want to change the layout, and then click OK. A message asking for confirmation appears.
- 4. Click Yes to save.
 - **Note:** The above procedures for Selecting a Salvo, Renaming a Salvo, and Editing a Salvo remains the same for the Shared Salvo View.

CAPTURING SALVO IMAGE

You can capture the entire salvo view as an image and store. The image is stored in the images and clips directory.

To capture salvo image

Click the always on the toolbar on the top of the salvo layout. The salvo image is created.

DELETING A SALVO VIEW

To delete a salvo view

• Right-click the salvo view in the Site window to display a context menu. Click **Delete**. The salvo view is deleted

SALVO BAR

A salvo bar appears on top of a salvo view. The salvo bar indicates the name of the salvo view. You can save a salvo view after you realign the cameras using the Save option on the Salvo Bar. You can also use the Save As option to save an existing salvo view with a different name. The context menu options on the salvo bar include **Send Message**, **Create Salvo View**, and **FullScreen**.

LIVE VIDEO

You can view live video and play any selected sequence using the options available in MAXPRO VMS.

VIEWING LIVE VIDEO

The panels in the salvo layout display video. You can select the video source such as cameras or sequences from the **Site** or **My Devices** window.

To view live video

- 1. Click the **Viewer** tab.
- Double-click the video source in the Site window or My Devices window. You
 can also drag and drop the video source on a panel in the salvo layout. The live
 video is displayed in the panel and the label Live appears over the video display.



Figure 4-1 A panel displaying live video

Note: The video source can also be selected using the virtual keyboard and joystick controller.

You can select multiple video sources and view live video in different panels of the salvo layout. When you hover the mouse over a video display, toolbars appear over the panel. The toolbars enable you to perform actions such as applying color correction, and so on.

UNDO AND REDO

Use the Undo and Redo options to undo and redo the drag and drop operation of video sources to the salvo layouts.

To undo and redo the drag and drop of a video sources

- To undo the drag and drop operation of video sources, click on the toolbar on the top of the salvo layout or press CTRL + Z keys.
- To redo the drag and drop operation of video sources, click on the toolbar on the top of the salvo layout or press CTRL + Y keys.
 - **Note:** This undo and redo feature is applicable for changing the salvo layouts, switching between cameras and closing the camera operations only.

CONTEXT MENU OPTIONS

When you right-click on a panel displaying live video, a context menu appears. The following table lists the commands in the context menu.

Command	Click to
Full Screen	maximize the salvo layout to full screen. Alternatively, you can click in the toolbar on the top of the salvo layout.
Remove Text Overlay	to remove text overlay displayed on the video. Alternatively, you can click in the toolbar on the top of the salvo layout.
Digital PTZ	enable digital PTZ. See Panning Tilting and Zooming for information on digital PTZ.
Mark In	add a mark in point in the timeline. You can also add a mark in point by pressing the CTRL + I keys.
	See Video Recording and Viewing for more information.
Mark Out	add a mark out point in the timeline. You can also add a mark out point by pressing the CTRL + O keys.
	See Video Recording and Viewing for more information.

Command	Click to
Save Image	save the frame displayed in the panel as an image in the BMP format.
	Alternatively, you can click in the toolbar on the top of the salvo layout to save the image in BMP format. See Saving Images.
Save Image As	save the frame displayed in the panel in different image formats such as JPG, PNG, and GIF. See <i>Saving Images</i> for more information.

PLAYING A SEQUENCE

A sequence is a set of live video streamed one after the other from cameras for a specified time interval. See the chapter *"Sequences"* for information on how to create sequences.

To play a sequence

- 1. Click the **Viewer** tab.
- 2. Click the **Sequences** window.
- Double-click the sequence you want to play or select the sequence, and then click Play Sequence. You can drag and drop the sequence on a panel in the salvo layout.

VIDEO RECORDING AND VIEWING

VIEWING RECORDED VIDEO

You can use the following to play recorded video:

Timeline

You can easily retrieve and view recorded video using the timeline and the date and time controls in the **Timeline** window. When you select a camera from the **Devices** window to view video, a timeline appears in the **Timeline** window. The name of the corresponding camera appears on the left of each timeline. You can add comments and mark points of interest in the timeline using the bookmark feature. The bookmarks are helpful for future review of recorded video.

You can also add mark in and mark out points in a timeline. Recorded video between a mark in and mark out point can be played repeatedly. This feature is referred to as loop playback of video.

You can view the frames from the recorded video as thumbnails in the timeline. You can also create clips from recorded video.

Player Controls

You can play recorded video at speeds ranging from 1/64X to 256X. You can also forward and reverse play the video. The frames from the recorded video can also be viewed one at a time in the panel.

Using the time jump feature, you can skip time intervals while viewing recorded video. This feature is helpful when viewing recorded video that spans across a long time interval.

See *Playing Recorded Video Using the Timeline* for more information on timeline and player controls.

TIMELINE

PLAYING RECORDED VIDEO USING THE TIMELINE

Timeline enables you to play recorded video from a particular date and time. A timescale is displayed in the lower part of the **Timeline** window. You can refer to the divisions in the timescale to locate a video recording in the timeline. Using the Date and Time calendar box in the **Timeline** window, you can select a date and time from which you want to play recorded video.

You can also add mark in and mark out points in a timeline (See *Playing Recorded Video Using Mark In and Mark Out Points in Timeline* for more information) to play a selected part of video repeatedly.

To play recorded video using the timeline

- 1. Click the **Viewer** tab.
- 2. Select the camera. To select the camera, double-click the video source in the **Site** window or **My Devices** window. You can also drag and drop the camera on a panel in the salvo layout. The video is displayed in the panel. Alternatively, you can click on a panel displaying video to select the corresponding camera from which you want to view video. A timeline appears in the **Timeline** window with the name of the camera on the left in full timeline mode.
 - **Note:** To view recorded video from multiple cameras, you can select more than one camera at a time. The cameras can also be selected using the virtual keyboard and joystick controller.
- 3. Play the recorded video from a date and time in one of the following ways.
- Click on the timeline from where you want to view video. You can refer to the divisions on the timescale that is displayed in the lower part of the timeline window to locate the date and time.
 - Note: You can set any timescale between seconds and days using the □ ■ slider. Move the slider towards left or right as required. This helps you to locate the video recording in the timeline. Click to view the divisions on the left of the timescale. Click to view the divisions on the right of the timescale.

or

box

• Select the date and time in the date and time calendar

and then click **OK** or use the

buttons corresponding to day, month, year,

hours, minutes, and seconds to select the date and time. The video recording is played from the selected date and time.

4

Note: In the **Calendar** box, select the **Adjust time for DST** check box to synchronize the time to the Daylight Savings time. Daylight Saving Time (or summer time as it is called in many countries) is a way of getting more light out of the day by advancing clocks by one hour during the summer.

VIEWING THUMBNAILS

To view the thumbnail frames

• Expand the camera name in the left of the timeline. The thumbnail frames appear.

PLAYER CONTROLS

You can do the following actions using the player controls.

Play the video

Click the **()** icon to play video. The icon changes to the You can click this icon to pause the playing of video.



View frames in the recorded video

Click the *(i)* icon to view the forward frames or click the *(i)* icon to view the reverse frames.

Play video that is paused



icon to forward play video.

To reverse play the video, click the 🚺 icon.

Change the playing speed

Hover the mouse over the **solution** while video is playing and move the slider to change the playing speed.

Note: To move the slider you can use the mouse scroll wheel. Scrolling up increases the speed and scrolling down decreases the speed.

The speed appears in the icon when you move the slider. For example, 1x in the icon indicates the playing speed.

Skip time intervals using the time jump control

Skipping enables you to easily locate the portion you want to view in a video recording. This is particularly useful when the video recording spans across a long time intervals.

MONITORING A SITE - Timeline '
Click the drop-down arrow on the
is playing and select a time interval. Click the to jump backward 🤇 💽 or click
the D to jump forward. The video jumps to the selected time interval.
Note: When you jump forward or jump forward, the video jumps to the selected time interval and is paused. You must explicitly click the icon to view the recorded video from the selected time interval.
 Volume control Hover the mouse over the move the slider to change the volume. Click the icon to mute the volume.
Note: To move the slider you can use the mouse scroll wheel. Scrolling up increases the volume and scrolling down decreases the volume.

CONTEXT MENU OPTIONS

A context menu appears when you right-click on a panel displaying live video. The following table lists the commands in the context menu.

Command	Click to
Full Screen	maximize the salvo layout to full screen. Alternatively, you can click 2 in the toolbar on the top of the salvo layout.
Remove Text Overlay	to remove text overlay displayed on the video.
	Alternatively, you can click in the toolbar on the top of the salvo layout.
Digital PTZ	enable digital PTZ. See <i>Panning, tilting, and zooming</i> for more information.

Command	Click to
Mark In	add a mark in point in the timeline. You can also add a mark in point by pressing the CTRL + I keys.
	See Video Recording and Viewing for more information.
Mark Out	add a mark out point in the timeline. You can also add a mark out point by pressing the CTRL + O keys.
	See Video Recording and Viewing for more information.
Save Image	save the frame displayed in the panel as an image in the BMP format.
	Alternatively, you can click and in the toolbar on the top of the salvo layout to save the image in BMP format. See <i>Saving Images</i> for more information.
Save Image As	save the frame displayed in the panel in different image formats such as JPG, PNG, and GIF.
	See Saving Images for more information.

PLAYING RECORDED VIDEO USING MARK IN AND MARK OUT POINTS IN TIMELINE

Mark in and mark out feature is useful when you want to play a portion of video repeatedly. You can add a mark in point to mark the start date and time in the timeline. To mark the end date and time, add a mark out point in the timeline. The portion of the timeline between a mark in and mark out point is referred to as loop.

You can add bookmarks between a loop to identify moments of interest in the video. The video in a loop can also be saved as a clip. See *Creating Clips* for more information.

CREATING A LOOP BY ADDING A MARK IN AND MARK OUT POINT IN THE

TIMELINE

To create a loop

1. Click to select the timeline in the Timeline window in which you want to add mark in and mark out points.

or

Click a panel displaying video to select the corresponding timeline.

2. To set the start date and time of the loop, add a mark in.

To add a mark in

Click the point in the timeline where you want to add a mark in and click the icon. Alternatively, you can right-click the point in the timeline where you want to add a mark in and click **Add Mark In** in the context menu. The mark in can also be added from a panel displaying video. Right-click the panel and
click **Add Mark** In in the context menu. Alternatively, click $|\mathfrak{c}|$ in the panel toolbar that displays recorded video. The mark in is added at the corresponding date and time in the timeline.

- **Note:** To remove the added mark in, right-click the mark in and click **Remove Mark In** in the context menu.
- 3. To set the end date and time of the loop, add a mark out.

To add a mark out

To add a mark out, click the point in the timeline where you want to add a mark out and click the **p** icon. Alternatively, you can right-click the point in the timeline where you want to add a mark out and click **Add Mark Out** in the context menu. The mark out can also be added from a panel displaying video. Right-click the panel and click **Add Mark Out** in the context menu. Alternatively, click **p** in the panel toolbar that displays recorded video. The mark out is added at the corresponding date and time in the timeline.

Note: You can add multiple mark in and mark out points in the same timeline. However, you cannot add two mark in points in succession. A mark out point needs to be added after each mark in point.

REMOVING A LOOP

To remove a loop

- 1. Right-click a loop in the timeline window. A context menu appears.
- 2. Click Remove Loop.
 - **Note:** Click **Remove All Loops** in the context menu to remove all the loops in the timeline.

PLAYING VIDEO FROM THE LOOP

To play video from the loop

1. To select the loop, click anywhere between the mark in and mark out points.

Note: A tool tip appears when you hover the mouse over a loop. The tool tip indicates the start time and end time of the loop.

2. Click the [] icon to play the loop. You can also right-click on a loop to display a context menu and click **Play Loop**.

TO STOP PLAYING OF VIDEO

To stop playing video

1. In the **Timeline** window, click to select the loop.

or

Click the panel displaying video pertaining to the loop. The corresponding timeline is selected.

2. Click the icon. Alternatively, you can right-click the loop to display a context menu and click **Stop Loop**.

VIDEO CONTROL

VIDEO CONTROL OPTIONS IN PANEL TOOLBARS

The panel toolbars appear when you hover the mouse over the video displayed in a panel. The toolbar that appears on top of a panel enables you to view the name of the video source and close the video display.



Figure 4-2 Toolbar on the right of the panel displaying live v ideo



Figure 4-3 Toolbar on the bottom of the salvo panel displaying live video

The toolbar that appears on the bottom and on the right of a panel consists of icons that enable you to perform the following actions.

Icon	Click to	
	zoom in to the video.	
æ		
	zoom out of the video.	
P		
121	reset the digital PTZ effects on the video display	

Icon	Click to
X	display the color correction window. Move the sliders to set the brightness, contrast, hue, and saturation. You can select the Blur checkbox to blur the video display and the Sharpness check box to increase the image sharpness or clarity.
	Alternatively, you can click this icon in the toolbar. Note: Select the Apply color changes check box to save the settings. Clicking the Reset button sets the color
	correction settings to default values.
[Select] -	displays a drop down box of presets. You can select a preset for the camera.
	Note: The drop down list is disabled when digital PTZ is enabled. You need to disable the digital PTZ feature to select a preset. See <i>Panning, tilting, and zooming</i> for information on enabling and disabling the digital PTZ feature.
	move a preset camera position.
4	To move a preset, select a preset number from the drop down list and then click the icon. The camera position (pan, tilt, and zoom) is moved to the selected preset.
	Note: The icon is disabled when digital PTZ is enabled. You need to disable the digital PTZ feature to move a preset. See <i>Panning, tilting, and zooming</i> for information on enabling and disabling the digital PTZ feature.
	store a preset camera position.
5	To store a preset, select a preset number from the drop down list and then click the icon. The camera position (pan, tilt, and zoom) is saved in the selected preset.
	Note: The icon is disabled when digital PTZ is enabled. You need to disable the digital PTZ feature to store a preset. See <i>Panning, tilting, and zooming</i> for information on enabling and disabling the digital PTZ feature.
۲	pan left.

4

Icon	Click to
	pan right.
۲	
	tilt up.
۲	
	tilt down.
۲	

PANNING, TILTING, AND ZOOMING

You can pan, tilt, and zoom (PTZ) the video displayed in a panel. You can perform two types of PTZ namely, analog PTZ and Digital PTZ.

Analog PTZ is the panning, tilting, and zooming of PTZ cameras.

Using the digital PTZ feature in MAXPRO VMS, you can perform panning and tilting on live and recorded video and clips. The digital PTZ feature when enabled allows you to perform panning and tilting on the video display that is zoomed or enlarged.

ZOOMING THE VIDEO DISPLAY

Use the mouse scroll wheel to enlarge (zoom in) or reduce (zoom out) the video display in the panel. Alternatively, hover the mouse over the video display. A toolbar appears in the lower part of the panel. You can click to zoom in and to zoom out the video display.

PANNING AND TILTING

To perform analog PTZ

- 1. Click the Viewer tab.
- 2. Center-click anywhere on the video panel. A point is highlighted.
- Move the mouse to the preferred location, and then click and hold left mouse button to perform pan and tilt. A arrow appears in the direction where the mouse is being moved.
- 4. Center-click again to stop panning and tilting.

Note: The digital PTZ must be disabled to use analog PTZ. To disable the digital PTZ feature, click and clear Digital PTZ in the context menu.

5. Click the video display and drag the mouse pointer in the direction to pan or tilt. An arrow appears on the video display indicating the pan or tilt direction.

To perform digital PTZ

- 1. Right-click on the video display in a panel. A context menu appears.
- 2. Select Digital PTZ. The digital PTZ feature is enabled for the video display in the panel.
- 3. Zoom the video display.
- 4. Center-click anywhere on the video panel. A point along with left, right, up, and down arrows appear.
- 5. Move the mouse in the required direction to pan and tilt.
- 6. Center-click again to stop panning and tilting.

You can also use the joystick controller (Ultrakey keyboard) to perform panning, tilting, and zooming.

4

IMAGES AND CLIPS

SAVING IMAGES

While viewing video in the panel, you can save a frame of the video as an image. The image can be saved in Bitmapped Graphics (BMP), Joint Photographic Experts Group (JPG) format, Portable Graphics format (PNG), and Graphics Interchange Format (GIF).

To save a frame displayed in a panel as an image

- 1. Click the Viewer tab.
- 2. Right-click the panel to display a context menu.
- Select Save Image to save the image in .BMP format. Alternatively, you can click on the toolbar on top of the salvo layout. The images are saved in the ImagesAndClips folder at the location in the hard drive in which MAXPRO VMS files are installed. For example, X:\Program Files\Honeywell\TrinityFramework\ImagesAndClips. Here, X: is the hard drive.

or

Select **Save Image As** to save the image in other formats. The **Save As** dialog box appears when you select the Save Image As command. You can select the format in the **Save As Type** box and type the name for the image in **File Name** box. You can also select a folder to save the image.

To save the salvo layout as an image

· Click on the toolbar on top of the salvo layout.

The salvo layout is saved as an image (.BMP format) in the ImagesAndClips folder.

Note: The images saved in the ImagesAndClips folder appear in the Image/Clip window. See Viewing Images and Clips for information on how to view images.

CREATING CLIPS

You can create clips from recorded video. These clips can be saved with digital signatures. Digital signatures ensure authenticity of clips. Digital signatures are primarily used to authenticate videos that are produced in courts as evidence. A digital signature generates a unique string for the clip using algorithms recommended by the W3CThe World Wide Web Consortium (W3C) is an international consortium where member organizations, a full-time staff, and the public work together to develop Web standards. If the video in the clip is modified, a verification check for the unique string fails indicating that the content is tampered. When a clip is saved with the digital signature, a package file with the .PKG extension is created to save the clip.

To create a clip

- 1. Click the Viewer tab.
- 2. Specify the loop for which you want to create a clip.

3. Click A dialog box appears with the name of the cameras from which video is displayed in the salvo layout.

or

Right-click a loop in the **Timeline** window and select **Export Clip** in the context menu. A dialog box appears.

From :	1/28/2012	• 12:00):00 AM 📑					_
To :	2/ 9/2012	• 12:00	00 AM 📑			15	Le	9
	C Create clip for specified duration							
			id Auto split on re			- 22	-	
	Include only	marked area an	d Auto split on re	ecording gap			1 214	
					HODSHIHUDIE	HIGHLA IP	สายเหลือ	
					🖲 🕡 (
		- Streams						
Came		From Date	From Time	To Date	To Time	Clip Name		_
Came	ra Name HIH-001F55667788		From Time 1:55:51 AM	To Date 2/4/2012	To Time 7:45:43 AM	Clip Name 120203015551	I_HCD5HII	1
Came							LHCD5HII	1
Came							I_HCD5HII	1
Came							I_HCD5HII	1
Came							I_HCD5HII	1
Came					7:45:43 AM	120203015551	Ŀ	4
Came					7:45:43 AM		Ŀ	1
Came	HIH-001F55667788	2/3/2012		2/4/2012	7:45:43 AM	120203015551	Ŀ	1
Came	HIH-001F55567788 Package_03Fe	2/3/2012	1:55:51 AM	2/4/2012	7:45:43 AM	120203015551	Ŀ	1
Came	HIH-001F55567788 Package_03Fe	2/3/2012	1:55:51 AM	2/4/2012	7:45:43 AM	120203015551	Ŀ	1

Figure 4-4 Creating a Clip

4. Select one of the following options in the dialog box.

Option	Select to
Include only marked area and Auto split on recording gap	save one or more loop in the timelines as clips.
Create clip for entire duration	specify the time duration of video that you want to save in the clip. After selecting this option, the date and time (start and end) can be specified in the From and To boxes.

- 5. Under **Streams**, select the cameras. Only the video from the selected cameras are saved as clips.
- 6. In the **Forma**t drop-down list under **Streams**, select the required format. The formats supported by the recorders are listed in the following table.

Recorder	Format Supported
Rapid Eye, Fusion	WMV
MAXPRO NVR	WMV

7. In the **Job Name** box, type a name for the job or retain the default name assigned by MAXPRO VMS.

4

8. In the **Location** box, you can select the folder in which you want to save the clip.

The default folder location is displayed in the **Location** box. You can click **I** to select another folder location

- 9. To archive the clip with the digital signature, select the **Archive and Digital Signature** check box.
- 10. In the **Comments** box, type the required comments for the job to be created.
- **11.** Click **OK** to create the clip. The clip creation status is indicated in the status bar. The clip is saved with an automatically generated name.

Note: The Clip Preview pane is not visible for recorders that do not support previewing of clips in the Clip Preview window.

Note: The playback session is closed while creating a clip from the cameras connected to the recorder with playback limitation. You have to restore playback session manually after the clip creation is complete.

To cancel the clip creation

- Click the clip creation status indicator in the status bar. The Clip Export Status dialog box appears.
- Right-click the job name that you want to cancel, and then select Cancel. To cancel all the jobs, select Cancel All.

NAMING CONVENTION FOR CLIPS

The following table explains the automatic naming convention for a clip using an example

Example of a clip name-080109125809 CameraDoor (1).MP4.

Clip Name	Description
080109	The first two digits indicate the year, the next two digits indicate the month, and the last two digits indicate the date of clip creation.
125809	The first two digits indicate the hour, the next two digit indicates the minutes, and the last two digits indicate the seconds.
CameraDoor	The name of the camera.
(1)	The file extension for the clip.
MP4	The file extension for the clip.
	Note: The file extension can be MP4 or WMV.

Note: You change the default naming convention for clips. See *Setting Profiles* for more information.

VIEWING IMAGES AND CLIPS

From the **Images/Clip** window, you can view the images and clips saved in the **ImagesAndClips** folder at the location in the hard drive in which MAXPRO VMS files are installed.

To view the list of saved images and clips

- 1. Click the Viewer tab, and then click the Images/Clip tab.
- In the Images/Clip window, expand the Images and Clips folder. Folders with names indicating the date in which the images and clips are created appears. The first two digits of the folder indicate the date, the next two digits indicate the month, and the last digits indicate the year.
- 3. Expand the folder corresponding to the date on which the image or clip you want to view is saved. Inside the folder, the clips are saved in the **Clips** sub-folder and images are saved in the **Images** sub-folder.
- 4. You can refresh the list of images and clips in the Image/Clip window to update the list. Refreshing the list displays the latest images and clip names. To refresh, right-click in the Image/Clip window to display a context menu and click Refresh.

MAGES

To view the images

In the **Images/Clip** window, right-click the image to display a context menu and select **Image View**. The salvo layout changes and the image is displayed on the screen.

Note: You can click in on the toolbar to view the salvo layout again. To view the image again from the salvo layout, click .

VIEWING OPTIONS FOR IMAGES

Option	Description
Image Size	On the toolbar, you can select the image size in the box. The image sizes available are Small, Medium, and Large.

VIEWING VIDEO RELATED TO AN IMAGE

If video recording is available, you can view video from the date and time of saving the image.

 In the Image/Clip window, right-click the image to display a context menu and click Show Video. The video is played from the starting date and time of saving the image.

CLIPS

4

To view the clips

• In the **Images/Clip** window, right-click the clip to display a context menu and select **Show Video**. The video is displayed in the salvo layout.

or

• Double-click the clip.

or

• Drag the clip on a panel in the salvo layout.

To view the clips folder

 In the Images/Clip window, right-click the Clips folder or any clip to display a context menu and click Show In Folder to view the folder in which the clips are saved.

You can view the first frame of video in a clip as an image.

To view the first frame as an image

 In the Images/Clip window, right-click the clip to display a context menu and select Image View. The salvo layout changes and the first frame from the clip is displayed on the screen.

DELETING IMAGES AND CLIPS

In the **Image/Clip** window, you can delete the images and clips that you do not need.

To delete an image or clip

- 1. Click the **Viewer** tab.
- 2. Expand the folder in which the image or clips is saved in the **Images/Clip** window.
- 3. Right-click the image or clip which you want to delete. A context menu appears.
- 4. Click Delete.

VIEWING PACKAGES

To view packages

• In the **Images/Clip** window, drag and drop the package to a salvo layout. The video is displayed in the salvo layout.

ALARMS

Alarms notify the occurrence of events to the operators. You can configure alarms to be triggered when events such as adding a camera to a recorder, recorder disk space nearing full, motion detection, and others happen. The events that trigger an alarm can be selected while configuring the recorders, video inputs, and switchers.

Each alarm goes through the following states:

New or Unacknowledged

When an alarm is triggered it appears in the **Alarm** window. The state of the alarm after it is triggered is referred to as unacknowledged. You can view the list of all the unacknowledged alarms in a table in the **Alarm** window. For each unacknowledged alarm, the following details are listed.

Column	Indicates
Description	name of the event that triggered the alarm. For example, camera motion detected.
Device Name	name of the device such as recorder, camera associated with the event. For example, the name of the camera that detected motion.
Event Details	name of the event attribute. Only the key event attribute is displayed in this column.
Date:Time	date and time when the alarm is triggered.
Severity	severity of the alarm.
Site	site name where the device is located.
Global ID	global unique identification number of the event.

The number of unacknowledged alarms is displayed in a blinking mode in the status bar red color. For example, **Alarms (10)** indicate that there are ten unacknowledged alarms.

Acknowledged

An acknowledged alarm indicates that the operator has taken the necessary action. After acknowledging the alarm, it is moved to the acknowledged alarms list in the Alarm window.

Cleared

After the response action is taken, you can remove or clear the alarms from the acknowledged list in the Alarm window.

ACKNOWLEDGING ALARMS

You can acknowledge an alarm to accept that the necessary response action is being taken.

To acknowledge an alarm

- 1. Click the **Viewer** tab, and then click **Alarm** tab.
- 2. Click to select the alarm you want to acknowledge in the **Alarm** window. The unacknowledged alarms are listed in the first table in the **Alarm** window.

Note: To select more than one unacknowledged alarm, press the CTRL key.

3. Click **Acknowledge**. The acknowledged alarm appears in the second table in the **Alarm** window.

If you have selected multiple alarms, all the alarms are acknowledged and appear in the second table in the **Alarm** window.

Note: If the active alarm count reaches 150, 000, a warning message appears on Alarms Indicator on the task bar.

CONTEXT MENU OPTIONS

When you right-click on the list of unacknowledged alarms in the first table, a context menu appears.

The following table lists the commands in the context menu.

Command	Click to
Ack	acknowledge the selected alarm.
Clear on Ack	automatically clear the alarms when they are acknowledged.
Ack All	acknowledges all the alarms displayed in the Alarm window.
Show Video	view video from the time corresponding to the occurrence of the event that triggered the alarm. The video is played in the currently selected panel in the salvo layout.
	Note: The video is played only when the video recording is available.
Show Details	view the details of the alarm. This feature lists the device from which the alarm was triggered, description, date time when the alarm was triggered, status of the alarm, global event ID, and the event attribute associated to the alarm. You can also use the previous and next buttons to view the details of the alarms listed in the alarms window.
Freeze	stop receiving the new or unacknowledged alarms in the Alarm window. You can click this command again to start receiving the alarms. This feature is useful when the Alarm window contains many unacknowledged alarms and it becomes difficult to mange them. You can stop receiving the alarms momentarily and start receiving again when needed.
Receive Alarms Only	list only the alarms in the Alarm window. Alarms are listed only when the severity level of the corresponding event that triggered the alarm is greater than or equal to the alarm severity threshold value. See <i>Setting Preferences</i> for more information

Command	Click to
Receive Events Only	list only the events in the Alarm window. Events whose severity level is greater than or equal to the alarm severity threshold value are listed. See <i>Setting Preferences</i> for more information.
Receive Both Alarms and Events	to list both alarms and events in the Alarm window.

CLEARING ACKNOWLEDGED ALARMS

You can clear the acknowledged alarms after taking the necessary action.

To clear an acknowledged alarm

- 1. Click the Viewer tab.
- 2. Click to select the alarm you want to clear in the **Alarm** window. The acknowledged alarms are listed in the second table in the **Alarm** window.

Note: To select more than one unacknowledged alarm, press the CTRL key.

3. Click **Clear**. The alarm is removed from the list of acknowledged alarms.

If you have selected multiple alarms, all the alarms are cleared.

To clear all the acknowledged alarms

 Click Clear All. All the acknowledged alarms are cleared and removed from the list of acknowledged alarms.

CONTEXT MENU OPTIONS

When you right-click on the list of acknowledged alarms in the second table, a context menu appears.

The following table lists the commands in the context menu.

Command	Click to
Clear	Clears the selected acknowledged alarm.
Clear All	Clears all the acknowledged alarms.
Show Video	view video from the time corresponding to the occurrence of the event that triggered the alarm. The video is played in the currently selected panel in the salvo layout.
	Note: The video is played only when the video recording is available.

Command	Click to
Show Details	view the details of the alarm. This feature lists the device from which the alarm was triggered, description, date time when the alarm was triggered, status of the alarm, global even ID, and the event attribute associated to the alarm. You can also use the previous and next buttons to view the details of the alarms listed in the alarms window.
Freeze	stop receiving the new or unacknowledged alarms in the Alarm window. You can click this command again to start receiving the alarms. This feature is useful when the Alarm window contains many unacknowledged alarms and it becomes difficult to mange them. You can stop receiving the alarms momentarily and start receiving again when needed.
Receive Alarms Only	list only the alarms in the Alarm window. Alarms are listed only when the severity level of the corresponding event that triggered the alarm is greater than or equal to the alarm severity threshold value. See <i>Setting Preferences</i> for more information.
Receive Events Only	list only the events in the Alarm window. Events whose severity level is greater than or equal to the alarm severity threshold value are listed. See <i>Setting</i> <i>Preferences</i> for more information.
Receive Both Alarms and Events	to list both alarms and events in the Alarm window.

SEARCHING FOR RECORDED VIDEO

You can search for recorded video and events from the cameras connected to the various recorders. You can filter the search for recorded video based on search conditions like video recorded today, yesterday, and others.

To search for recorded video

1. Click the **Search** tab.



Figure 4-5 Search

- 2. In the Search for drop down list, select one of the following:
 - Events
 - Clips
- The list of recorders are displayed under **Recorders** in the **Filter** window. You
 can select more than one recorder by selecting the check box corresponding to
 it.
- The list of cameras that are connected to the selected recorder is displayed under **Cameras** section in the **Filter** window. Select the check box next to the cameras from which the video is recorded.
 - **Note:** Select the **Select all** check box to select all the cameras for the selected recorder(s).

5. Select one of the following search conditions in the **Date time filter** drop-down list.

Condition	To search for
Today	video recorded today.
Yesterday	video recorded yesterday.
Last 7 Days	video recorded in the last seven days.
Last 30 Days	video recorded in the last 30 days.
On	video recorded on a particular date. The From box to select the date is enabled when you select On .
On or Before	video recorded up to a particular date. The From box to select the date is enabled when you select On or Before .
Between	video recorded between a time duration. The From and To boxes are enabled when you select Between. You can select the start time and date in the From box. The end time and date can be selected in the To box.

6. If you are doing an "Event" search, then under **Type** select the check box corresponding to the events that you want to search.

Or

If you are doing a "Clip" search, then under **Type** select the check box corresponding to the recording you want to search.

PLAYING VIDEO AFTER SEARCHING

• Drag and drop the search result from the **Results** window on the salvo layout. The panel starts displaying the recorded video.

ARCHIVING AND RESTORING VIDEO

- 1. Select the recorded video from the list of search results.
- 2. Click

To restore an archived video

- 1. Select the archived video from the list of search results.
- 2. Click 😃

Note: The archived videos appear in black.

INTELLISENSE SEARCH

The Intellisense search option makes the search of cameras simpler and easier. When a part of the camera name is types in the text box, the Intellisense search displays the list of cameras that are connected to various recorders in the Devices window. For example, if you are searching for Camera 2 connected to particular recorder, then type **Ca** in the text box, the list of camera names that contain 'ca' are displayed.

Intellisense search also supports wild characters while searching. For example,

- ca* camera names that begins with 'ca' are displayed.
- *ca camera names that ends with 'ca' are displayed.
- *ca* camera names that contain 'ca' are displayed.
- ! ca cameras that does not have 'ca' in their name are displayed.

Select the required filter string and click on the filter button. You can toggle between the Filter On and Off mode using the option \square or right-click \square , and select between Filter ON and Filter OFF. The hot key to activate intellisense search is F4.

PERSISTENCE

Persistence is the ability to retain the data that was stored while using the application which otherwise is lost as it is stored on a temporary memory. MAXPRO VMS supports persistency for some of the operations in the viewer. The settings stored in the viewer during your current log on is stored and can be used when you log on next time.

PERSISTENCE FOR CAMERAS

Persistence for cameras allows you to store the camera details, salvo view details, and message details, so that you can use the same details during your next log on. For example, if you have set mirror image for all the cameras on a four-panel salvo layout and log off, the same would be displayed when you log on next time. The following camera digital parameters are persisted,

- Flip
- Text Overlay
- Mirror
- Brightness
- Hue
- Contrast
- Saturation
- Sharpness
- Blur
- Deinterlace
- Video Display Type

VIEWER WINDOW SIZE AND POSITION PERSISTENCE

You can preserve the size and position of the viewer window. The size and position details are stored based on the monitor ID and Workstation.

LOG ON PERSISTENCE

Log on persistence allows you to store the previous user credentials. For example, if you have logged on using windows authentication and log off from MAXPRO VMS, the same user credentials would be preserved when you launch MAXPRO VMS to log on.

PERSISTENCE FOR SORT OPTIONS

The sort options in **Devices** tree, **My Devices** tree, **Monitors** tree, **Shared Devices** tree, **My Salvo View** tree, **Shared Salvo View** tree, **Sequence** tree, **Group By options** in **Device** tree, and Partition selection in **Devices** tree is persistent based on the user. The devices that are listed using the **Sort by Name** and **Group By** options are preserved in the MAXPRO VMS Viewer.

STATUS OF DEVICES

The following table lists the status of the devices as they appear in **Devices** and **My Devices** window.

Status	Description
a	Suggests that the DVR is available.
2	Suggests that the DVR is not available.
	Suggests that the fixed camera is configured.
	Suggests that the fixed camera is disabled.
.	Suggests that the fixed camera is enabled.
I	Suggests that the fixed camera is not available.
2	Suggests that the fixed camera recording is enabled.
-	Suggests that the PTZ camera is available.
-	Suggests that the PTZ camera is configured.
2	Suggests that the PTZ camera is disabled.
=	Suggests that the PTZ camera is not available.
	Suggests that PTZ camera recording is enabled.



This page is intentionally left blank

UTILITIES AND TOOLS

VERIFYING THE DIGITAL CERTIFICATE FOR CLIPS

A clip saved with digital signature can be verified using the MAXPRO VMS Digital Certificate Verification Utility.

The MAXPRO VMS Digital Certificate Verification Utility is installed by default along with all MAXPRO VMS Client. This utility can be installed on a computer that does not has MAXPRO VMS. A separate installation setup package for this purpose is provided in the tools folder of MAXPRO VMS DVD (\Tools\HVMS Digital Certificate Verification Utility\HVMS Digital Certificate Verification Utility.exe). You can install this utility and verify the digital certificate for clips on any computer.

To verify the digital certificate

- Choose Start>Program>Honeywell>MAXPRO[™] VMS Package Verification Utility. The MAXPRO[™] VMS Digital Certificate Verification Utility dialog box appears.
- 2. From the File menu, click Open Package or click Open Media File.
- Browse to the folder, select the package or the media file for which you want to verify the digital certificate, and then click **Open**. The default path would be C:\Program Files\Honeywell\TrinityFramework\ImagesAndClips.
- 4. The Authentic package: MAXPRO[™] VMS digital certificate found message appears if the clip is saved with digital signature and if the digital certificate is valid.

5

MAXPRO VMS AGENT

MAXPRO VMS client Agent helps you to export log, launch monitors, and back up database (only on server). The MAXPRO Client Agent runs automatically during Windows startup. Exporting log includes exporting MAXPRO VMS log files, DVM log files, Windows System and Applications Event log, and General Workstation Configuration Info log.

To launch monitors

 Right-click in the notification area, and then choose Launch > Monitor N (Where N represents the monitor number). If you want to launch all the monitors, then click All. Monitors have to be configured using the options available in the Configurator tab.

Note: If a monitor (Monitor 1) is already launched and if you again launch the same monitor again from the Client agent, a new instance of the monitor is not launched; instead the focus is shifted to the same monitor, which is already running.

To export log

 Right-click in the notification area, and then choose Diagnostics > Export Log. A zip file named MaxproVMS_Log_Workstation_X (where X is the name of the computer) is exported to C:\Program Files\Honeywell\TrinityFramework.

Note: The disk drive might vary depending on the installation of MAXPRO VMS.

To backup database

Right-click in the notification area, and then choose Diagnostics > Backup Database. The database file named
 TrinityDatabase_WorkstationName_DateTime.bak (where WorkstationName is
 the name of the workstation and DateTime is the date and time when the file is
 exported) is exported to C:\Program Files\Microsoft SQL
 Server\MSSQL.2\MSSQL\Backup.

Note: The disk drive might vary depending on the installation of MAXPRO VMS.

Honeywell Video Systems (Head Office)

Honeywell Security Australia Pty Ltd. Unit 5, Riverside Centre, 24-28 River Road West Parramatta, NSW 2150, Australia www.honeywellsecurity.com/au ☎ +61.2.8837.9300

Honeywell Security Asia Flat A, 16/F, CDW Building, 388 Castle Peak Road Tsuen Wan, N.T., Hong Kong www.asia.security.honeywell.com ☎ +852.2405.2323

Honeywell Security France Parc Gutenberg, 8, Voie La Cardon 91120, Palaiseau, France www.honeywell.com/security/fr ☎ +33.01.64.53.80.40

Honeywell Security Italia SpA Via Treviso 2 / 4 31020 San Vendemiano Treviso, Italy www.honeywell.com/security/it \$\approx +39.04.38.36.51\$

Honeywell Security España Mijancas 1. 3^a Planta P.Ind. Las Mercedes 28022 Madrid, Spain www.honeywell.com/security/es 🕾 +34.902. 667.800 Honeywell Video Systems Northern Europe Netwerk 121 1446 WV Purmerend, The Netherlands www.honeywell.com/security/nl +31.299.410.200

Honeywell Security South Africa

Honeywell Security Deutschland

Johannes-Mauthe-Straße 14 D-72458 Albstadt, Germany www.security.honeywell.com/de ☎ +49.74 31.8 01.0

Honeywell Security Poland

Chmielewskiego 22a, 70-028 Szczecin, Polska www.ultrak.pl 2 +48.91.485.40.60

Honeywell Security Czech Republic

Havránkova 33, Brno Dolní Heršpice, 619 00, Czech Republic www.olympo.cz 2 +420.543.558.111

Honeywell Security Slovakia Republic

Vajnorská 142, 83104 Bratislava Slovakia www.olympo.sk 2 +421.2.444.54.660

Honeywell

www.honeywellvideo.com HVSsupport@honeywell.com

Document 800-11181 - Rev A - 02/2012

© 2012 Honeywell International Inc. All rights reserved. No part of this publication may be reproduced by any means without written permission from Honeywell Video Systems. The information in this publication is believed to be accurate in all respects. However, Honeywell Video Systems cannot assume responsibility for any consequences resulting from the use thereof. The information contained herein is subject to change without notice. Revisions or new editions to this publication may be issued to incorporate such changes